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1 Scope of Bid

2 Source of Funds

3 Corrupt and
Fraudulent
Practices

4  Eligible Bidders

11

1.2

2.1

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

A. General

In connection with the Invitation for Bids specified in the Bid Data
Sheet (BDS), the Employer, as specified in the BDS, issues these
Bidding Documents for the procurement of Works as specified in
Section VII - Works Requirements. The name, identification, and
number of lots (contracts) of this International Procurement
Competition (IPC) process are specified in the BDS.

Throughout these Bidding Documents:

a) The term "in writing" means communicated in written form and
delivered against receipt;

b) Except where the context requires otherwise, words indicating
the singular also include the plural and words indicating the
plural also include the singular; and

c) "Day" means calendar day.

The Employer specified in the BDS has received or has applied for
financing (hereinafter called "funds") from Agence Francaise de
Développement (hereinafter called "AFD") toward the project named
in the BDS. The Employer intends to apply a portion of the funds to
eligible payments under the contract(s) for which these Bidding
Documents are issued.

AFD requires compliance with its policy regarding corrupt and
fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI - AFD Policy - Corrupt
and Fraudulent Practices - Environmental and Social Responsibility.

In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall
cause its subcontractors and subconsultants, to permit AFD to
inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any
prequalification process, Bid submission, and contract performance
(in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors
appointed by AFD.

A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a State-owned
entity - subject to ITB 4.3 - or any combination of such entities in the
form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the
intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent.
In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and
severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with
the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who
shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of
any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and,
in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract
execution. Unless specified in the BDS, there is no limit on the
number of members in a JV.

A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to
have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be
considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this
procurement process, if the Bidder:

a) Directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under
common control with another Bidder; or

b) Receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from
another Bidder; or
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c) Has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or

d) Has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through
common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the
Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the
Employer regarding this bidding process; or

e) Participates in more than one Bid in this bidding process.
Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the
disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved.
However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same
subcontractor in more than one Bid; or

f)  Has (or any of its affiliates has) participated as a consultant in
the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the
Works that are the subject of the Bid; or

g) Hasbeen hired, oris proposed to be hired (or any of its affiliates
has been hired, or is proposed to be hired) by the Employer as
Engineer for the Contract implementation; or

h) Has a close business or family relationship with a professional
staff of the Employer (or of the project implementing agency, or
of a recipient of a part of the funds) who: (i) are directly or
indirectly involved in the preparation of the Bidding Documents
or specifications of the contract, and/or the Bid evaluation
process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the
implementation or supervision of such contract unless the
conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in
a manner acceptable to AFD throughout the procurement
process and execution of the contract.

4.3 AFD'’s eligibility criteria to Bid are described in Section V - Eligibility
Criteria.

4.4 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Employer
as the result of the execution of a Bid—Securing Declaration.

4.5 This Bidding is open only to prequalified Bidders unless specified in
the BDS.

4.6 A Bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the
Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.

5 Eligible Materials, 5.1 The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the
Equipment and Contract and financed by AFD may have their origin in any country
Services subject to the restrictions specified in Section V - Eligibility Criteria,

and all expenditures under the Contract will not contravene such
restrictions. At the Employer’s request, Bidders may be required to
provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and services.

B. Contents of Bidding Documents

6  Sections of 6.1 The Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include
Bidding all the Sections specified below, and which should be read in
Documents conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.

PART 1: Bidding Procedures
e Section | - Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
e Section Il — Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

e Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
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7  Clarification of
Bidding
Documents, Site
Visit, Pre-Bid
Meeting

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.2

7.3

e Section IV — Bidding Forms
e Section V — Eligibility Criteria

e Section VI - AFD Policy — Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices —
Environmental and Social Responsibility

PART 2: Works Requirements

e Section VIl — Works Requirements

PART 3: Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms
e Section VIII — General Conditions (GC)

e Section IX — Particular Conditions (PC)

e Section X — Contract Forms

The Invitation for Bids issued by the Employer is not part of the
Bidding Documents.

Unless obtained directly from the Employer, the Employer is not
responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Documents,
responses to requests for clarification, the minutes of the pre-Bid
meeting (if any), or amendments to the Bidding Documents in
accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents
obtained directly from the Employer shall prevail.

The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and
specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all
information and documentation as is required by the Bidding
Documents.

A Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Documents shall
contact the Employer in writing at the Employer’s address specified
in the BDS or raise its enquiries during the pre-Bid meeting if
provided for in accordance with ITB 7.4. The Employer will respond
in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request
is received no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the deadline for
submission of Bids. The Employer shall forward copies of its
response to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents
in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but
without identifying its source. If so, specified in the BDS, the
Employer shall also promptly publish its response at the web page
identified in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the
essential elements of the Bidding Documents, the Employer shall
amend the Bidding Documents following the procedure under ITB 8
and ITB 22.2.

The Bidder is advised to visit and examine the Site of Works and its
surroundings and obtain for itself on its own responsibility all
information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering
into a contract for construction of the Works. The costs of visiting the
Site shall be at the Bidder’s own expense.

The Bidder and any of its personnel or agents will be granted
permission by the Employer to enter upon its premises and lands for
the purpose of such visit, but only upon the express condition that
the Bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and indemnify the
Employer and its personnel and agents from and against all liability
in respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal
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Amendment of
Bidding
Documents

Cost of Bidding

Language of Bid
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Comprising the Bid

7.4

7.5

7.6

8.1

8.2

8.3

10.1

111

injury, loss of or damage to property, and any other loss, damage,
costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the inspection.

If so specified in the BDS, the Bidder’s designated representative is
invited to attend a pre-Bid meeting. The purpose of the meeting will
be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may
be raised at that stage.

The Bidder is requested, as far as possible, to submit any questions
in writing, to reach the Employer not later than one week before the
meeting.

Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting, if applicable, including the text of the
guestions asked by Bidders, without identifying the source, and the
responses given, together with any responses prepared after the
meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all Bidders who have
acquired the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 6.3. Any
modification to the Bidding Documents that may become necessary
as a result of the pre-Bid meeting shall be made by the Employer
exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to ITB 8 and
not through the minutes of the pre-Bid meeting. Nonattendance at
the pre-Bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a
Bidder.

At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, the Employer
may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing amendments.

Any amendment issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and
shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding
Documents from the Employer in accordance with ITB 6.3. The
Employer shall also promptly publish the amendment on the
Employer’s web page in accordance with ITB 7.1.

To give Bidders reasonable time in which to take an amendment into
account in preparing their Bids, the Employer may, at its discretion,
extend the deadline for the submission of Bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2.

C. Preparation of Bids

The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and
submission of its Bid, and the Employer shall not be responsible or
liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the
bidding process.

The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the
Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer, shall be written in
the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and
printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language
provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the
relevant passages in the language specified in the BDS, in which
case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall
govern.

The Bid shall comprise the following:
a) Letter of Bid and the Bidding Forms in accordance with ITB 12;

b) Completed schedules as required, including Price Schedules,
in accordance with ITB 12 and 14 and as indicated in the BDS;

c) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with
ITB 19.1;
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12
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Letter of Bid,
Statement of
Integrity, Bidding
Forms and
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Alternative Bids,
Alternative
Technical
Solutions and
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11.2

11.3

12.1

131

13.2

13.3

134

135

d) Alternative Bids, if permissible in accordance with ITB 13;

e) Written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to
commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.2;

f)  Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Social and Environmental
Responsibility duly signed, in accordance with ITB 12;

g) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing
the Bidder's continued qualified status or, if post-qualification
applies, as specified in accordance with ITB 4.5, the Bidder’s
qualifications to perform the contract if its Bid is accepted;

h) Technical proposal in accordance with ITB 16;
i) Any other document required in the BDS.

In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, Bids submitted by a
JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into
by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint
Venture Agreement in the event of a successful Bid shall be signed
by all members and submitted with the Bid, together with a copy of
the proposed Agreement.

The Bidder shall furnish information on commissions and gratuities,
if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this
Bid.

The Letter of Bid, the Statement of Integrity, the Bidding Forms and
Schedules, including the Bill of Quantities for unit price contracts or
the Schedule of Prices in case of lump sum contracts, shall be
prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV - Bidding
Forms. The Letter of Bid and the Statement of Integrity must be
completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall
be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.4. All blank spaces
shall be filled in with the information requested.

Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, alternative Bids shall not
be considered. If permitted, the method for their evaluation shall be
described in Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, alternative technical
solutions shall not be considered. If Bidders are permitted to submit
alternative technical solutions and only for specified parts of the
Works, such parts shall be identified in Section VII - Works
Requirements. The methods for their evaluation shall be described
in Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Bidders wishing to submit alternatives, if permitted under ITB 13.1
and/or ITB 13.2, shall provide all information necessary for a
complete evaluation by the Employer, including but not limited to,
drawings, design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of
prices, proposed construction methodology, evidence of meeting the
qualification criteria, the benefits to the employer for selecting the
alternative Bid and/or alternative technical solution and other
relevant detalils.

Only one (1) alternative Bid per Bidder may be submitted and only
one (1) alternative technical solution for each permitted part of the
Works may be submitted.

Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, alternative times for
completion of the Works shall not be considered. If permitted the
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14.1

14.2
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14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

15.1

15.2

method for their evaluation shall be described in
Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid
and in the Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified
below.

The Bidder shall submit a Bid for the whole of the Works described
in ITB 1.1, by filling in price(s) for all items of the Works, as identified
in Section IV - Bidding Forms. In case of admeasurement contracts,
the Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works
described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or
price is entered by the Bidder shall be deemed covered by the rates
for other items in the Bill of Quantities and will not be paid for
separately by the Employer. An item not listed in the priced Bill of
Quantities shall be assumed to be not included in the Bid, and
provided that the Bid is determined substantially responsive
notwithstanding this omission, the highest price of the item quoted by
substantially responsive Bidders will be added to the Bid price and
the equivalent total cost of the Bid so determined will be used for
price comparison.

The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid shall be the total price of
the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.

The Bidder shall quote any discounts and the methodology for their
application in the Letter of Bid.

Unless otherwise specified in the BDS and the Contract, the
rate(s) and price(s) quoted by the Bidder are subject to adjustment
during the performance of the Contract in accordance with the
provisions of the Conditions of Contract. In such a case, the Bidder
shall furnish the indices and weightings for the price adjustment
formulae in the Schedule of Adjustment Data and the Employer may
require the Bidder to justify its proposed indices and weightings.

If so specified in ITB 1.1, Bids are being invited for individual lots
(contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Bidders wishing
to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall
specify in their Bid the price reductions applicable to each package,
or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts
shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4, provided the Bids for
all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.

Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, all duties, taxes, and other
levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other
cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of
Bids, shall be included in the rates and prices and the total Bid Price
submitted by the Bidder.

The currency(ies) of the Bid and the currency(ies) of payments shall
be as specified in the BDS.

Bidders may be required by the Employer to justify, to the Employer’s
satisfaction, their local and foreign currency requirements, and to
substantiate that the amounts included in the prices shown in the
Schedule of Adjustment Data in the Appendix to Bid are reasonable,
in which case a detailed breakdown of the foreign currency
requirements shall be provided by Bidders.
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The Bidder shall furnish a technical proposal including a statement
of work methods, equipment, personnel, Schedules and any other
information as stipulated in Section IV - Bidding Forms, in sufficient
detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidder’s proposal to meet
the Work requirements and the completion time.

In accordance with Section Ill - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria,
to establish that the Bidder continues to meet the criteria used at the
time of prequalification, the Bidder shall provide in the corresponding
information sheets included in Section IV - Bidding Forms, updated
information on any assessed aspect that changed from that time, or
if post-qualification applies as specified in ITB 4.5, the Bidder shall
provide the information requested in the corresponding information
sheets included in Section IV - Bidding Forms.

If a margin of preference applies as specified in accordance with ITB
33.1, domestic Bidders, individually or in joint ventures, applying for
eligibility for domestic preference shall supply all information required
to satisfy the criteria for eligibility specified in accordance with ITB
33.1.

Any change in the structure or formation of a Bidder after being
prequalified and invited to Bid (including, in the case of a JV, any
change in the structure or formation of any member thereto) shall be
subject to the written approval of the Employer prior to the deadline
for submission of Bids. Such approval shall be denied if (i) as a
consequence of the change, the Bidder no longer substantially meets
the qualification criteria set forth in Section Il - Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria; or (ii) in the opinion of the Employer, the
change may result in a substantial reduction in competition. Any such
change should be submitted to the Employer not later than fourteen
(14) days after the date of the Invitation for Bids.

Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the BDS after the
Bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Employer in
accordance with ITB 22.1. A Bid valid for a shorter period shall be
rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.

In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Bid validity
period, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of
validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made
in writing. If a Bid security is requested in accordance with ITB 19, it
shall also be extended for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the
deadline of the extended validity period. A Bidder may refuse the
request without forfeiting its Bid security. A Bidder granting the
request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid, except as
provided in ITB 18.3.

If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days
beyond the expiry of the initial Bid validity, the Contract price shall be
determined as follows:

a) In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be
the Bid price adjusted by the factor specified in the BDS;

b) Inthe case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be
made;

c) In any case, Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid price
without taking into consideration the applicable correction from
those indicated above.
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The Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid, either a Bid-Securing
Declaration or a Bid Security as specified in the BDS, in original
form and, in the case of a Bid Security, in the amount and currency
specified in the BDS.

A Bid-Securing Declaration shall use the form included in
Section IV - Bidding Forms.

If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security
shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the
Bidder’s option:

a) An unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or financial
institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);

b) Anirrevocable letter of credit;
c) A cashier’s or certified check; or
d) Another security specified in the BDS;

from a reputable source from an eligible country as specified in
Section V - Eligibility Criteria. If the unconditional guarantee is issued
by a financial institution located outside the Employer’s Country, the
issuing financial institution shall have a correspondent financial
institution located in the Employer’s Country to make it enforceable.
In the case of a bank guarantee, the Bid security shall be submitted
either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV - Bidding
Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the
Employer prior to Bid submission. The Bid Security shall be valid for
twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original validity period of the Bid,
or beyond any period of extension if requested under ITB 18.2.

Any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security
or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Employer as
non-responsive.

The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as
promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the
Contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to
ITB 42.

The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as
promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the
Contract and furnished the required Performance Security.

The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration
executed:

a) If a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity
specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extension
thereto provided by the Bidder; or

b) If the successful Bidder fails to:
(i) Sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or
(i) Furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB 42.

The Bid Security or the Bid-Securing Declaration of a JV shall be in
the name of the JV that submits the Bid. If the JV has not been legally
constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of Bidding, the
Bid Security or the Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of
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all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB
4.1 and ITB 11.2.

If a Bid Security is not required in the BDS pursuant to ITB 19.1,
and

a) If a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity
specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension
thereto provided by the Bidder, or

b) If the successful Bidder fails to sign the Contract in accordance
with ITB 41; or furnish a Performance Security in accordance
with ITB 42;

the Employer may, if provided for in the BDS, declare the Bidder
ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for a period of
time as stated in the BDS.

The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising
the Bid as described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL".
Alternative Bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, shall be
clearly marked "ALTERNATIVE". In addition, the Bidder shall submit
copies of the Bid, in the number specified in the BDS and clearly
mark them "COPY". In the event of any discrepancy between the
original and the copies, the original shall prevail.

The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in
indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign
on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written
confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be attached to the
Bid. The name and position held by each person signing the
authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages
of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be
signed or initialled by the person signing the Bid.

In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized
representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally
binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney
signed by their legally authorized representatives. If the JV has not
been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of
Bidding, then the Bid shall be signed by every member of the
proposed JV.

Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they
are signed or initialled by the person signing the Bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

The Bidder shall enclose the original and all copies of the Bid,
including alternative Bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, in
separate sealed envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as
"ORIGINAL", "ALTERNATIVE" and "COPY". These envelopes
containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one
single envelope.

The inner and outer envelopes shall:
a) Bear the name and address of the Bidder;
b) Be addressed to the Employer in accordance with ITB 22.1;

c) Bear the specific identification of this bidding process in
accordance with ITB 1.1; and
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d) Bear a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid
opening.

If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer
will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature
opening of the Bid.

Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later
than the date and time specified in the BDS. When so specified in
the BDS, Bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids
electronically. Bidders submitting Bids electronically shall follow the
electronic Bid submission procedures specified in the BDS.

The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the
submission of Bids by amending the Bidding Documents in
accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the
Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall
thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

The Employer shall not consider any Bid that arrives after the
deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any Bid
received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of Bids
shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.

A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been
submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized
representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization in
accordance with ITB 20.2. The corresponding substitution or
modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice.
All notices must be:

a) Prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and ITB 21
(except that withdrawals notices do not require copies), and in
addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked
"WITHDRAWAL", "SUBSTITUTION", "MODIFICATION"; and

b) Received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for
submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 22.

Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be
returned unopened to the Bidders.

No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval
between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiration of the
period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or
any extension thereof.

Except in the cases specified in ITB 23 and 24, the Employer shall
publicly open and read out in accordance with ITB 25 all Bids
received by the deadline (regardless of the number of Bids received),
at the date, time and place specified in the BDS, in public and in the
presence of Bidders™ designated representatives and anyone who
choose to attend. Any specific electronic Bid opening procedures
required if electronic Bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB
22.1, shall be as specified in the BDS.

First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read
out and the envelope with the corresponding Bid shall not be opened
but returned to the Bidder. No Bid withdrawal shall be permitted
unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid
authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Bid
opening. Next, envelopes marked "SUBSTITUTION" shall be
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opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid
being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but
returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless
the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization
to request the substitution and is read out at Bid opening. Envelopes
marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the
corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the
corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to
request the modification and is read out at Bid opening. Only Bids
that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered
further.

All other envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the
name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid
Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and
alternative Bids; the presence or absence of a Bid security or Bid-
securing declaration, if required; and any other details as the
Employer may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative
Bids read out at Bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. The
Letter of Bid and the Schedules are to be initialled by a minimum of
three representatives of the Employer attending Bid opening. At Bid
opening, the Employer shall neither discuss the merits of any Bid nor
reject any Bid (except for late Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.1).

The Employer shall prepare a record of the Bid opening that shall
include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is
a withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot
(contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative Bids;
and the presence or absence of a Bid security or Bid-securing
declaration, if one was required. The Bidders’ representatives who
are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a
Bidder’s signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and
effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all
Bidders.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

Information relating to the examination, evaluation, and comparison
of the Bids, and qualification of the Bidders and recommendation of
contract award shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons
not officially concerned with the bidding process until information on
Contract award is communicated to all Bidders in accordance with
ITB 40.

Any attempt by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the
examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids, and
qualification of the Bidders, or Contract award decisions may result
in the rejection of its Bid.

Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of Bid opening to the time of
Contract award, if a Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any
matter related to the bidding process, it shall do so in writing.

To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids,
and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at its discretion,
ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid, given a reasonable time
for a response. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in
response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The
Employer’s request for clarification and the response shall be in
writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in
the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or
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permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors
discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the Bids, in
accordance with ITB 31.

If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and
time set in the Employer’s request for clarification, its Bid may be
rejected.

During the evaluation of Bids, the following definitions apply:

a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the
Bidding Documents;

b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding
from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the
Bidding Documents; and

c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information
or documentation required in the Bidding Documents.

The Employer’'s determination of a Bid’s responsiveness is to be
based on the contents of the Bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.

A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of
the Bidding Documents without material Deviation, Reservation, or
Omission. A material Deviation, Reservation, or Omission is one that,

a) If accepted, would:

(i) Affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or
performance of the Works specified in the Contract; or

(ii) Limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding
Documents, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's
obligations under the proposed Contract; or

b) If rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other
Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bid.

The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid
submitted in accordance with ITB 16, in particular, to confirm that all
requirements of Section VII - Works Requirements have been met
without any material Deviation, Reservation or Omission.

If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the
Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not
subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material
Deviation, Reservation, or Omission.

Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may
waive any non-material non-conformity (a non-conformity being a
Deviation, Reservation or Omission) in the Bid.

Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may
request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or
documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify
non-material non-conformities in the Bid related to documentation
requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such
non-conformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the
Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the
rejection of its Bid.

Only for admeasurement contracts and provided that a Bid is
substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable
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non-material non-conformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect,
the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to
reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component.

Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall
correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:

a) Only for admeasurement contracts, if there is a discrepancy
between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by
multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail
and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of
the Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal
point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted
shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;

b) Only for admeasurement contracts, if there is an error in a total
corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the
subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and

c) Ifthereis a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount
in words shall prevail, unless, only for admeasurement
contracts, the amount expressed in words is related to an
arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail
subject to (a) and (b) above.

Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors.
Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 31.1 shall
result in the rejection of the Bid.

For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid
shall be converted into a single currency as specified in the BDS.

Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, a margin of preference for
domestic Bidders shall not apply.

Unless otherwise stated in the BDS, the Employer does not intend
to execute any specific elements of the Works by subcontractors
selected in advance by the Employer (nominated subcontractors).

A "specialized subcontractor" is a subcontractor hired for specialized
work as defined by the Employer in Section Ill - 4.2 Experience. If no
specialized work is specified by the Employer as such,
subcontractors experience shall not be considered for Bids
evaluation.

In case of Prequalification, the Bidder’'s Bid shall hame the same
specialized subcontractor as submitted in the prequalification
application and approved by the Employer, or may name another
specialized subcontractor meeting the requirements specified in the
prequalification phase.

In case of Post qualification, the Employer may permit subcontracting
for certain specialized works as indicated in
Section Il - 4.2 Experience. When sub-contracting is permitted by
the Employer, the specialized subcontractor’'s experience shall be
considered for the evaluation. Section Il - Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria, describes the qualification criteria for
subcontractors.

The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this
Clause. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be
permitted.
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To evaluate a Bid, the Employer shall consider the following:

a) The Bid price, excluding Provisional Sums unless priced
competitively and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the
Schedules, but including Daywork items, where priced
competitively;

b) Price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in
accordance with ITB 31.1;

c) Price adjustment due to missing items, missing rates, or
discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.2 and 14.4;

d) Price adjustment due to quantifiable non-material
non-conformities in accordance with ITB 30.3;

e) Converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (d) above,
if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32;

f) The additional evaluation factors as specified in
Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the
Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the
Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.

If these Bidding Documents allows Bidders to quote separate prices
for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest
evaluated price of the lot (contract) combinations, including any
discounts offered in the Letter of Bid, is specified in
Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

If the Bid is seriously unbalanced or front loaded in the opinion of the
Employer and after evaluation of the price analyses, taking into
consideration the schedule of estimated Contract payments, the
Employer may require that the amount of the performance security
be increased at the expense of the Bidder to a level sufficient to
protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of
the successful Bidder under the Contract.

Only the qualifications of the Bidder shall be considered. In particular,
the qualifications of a parent or other affiliated company that is not
party to the Bidder under a JV in accordance with ITB 4.1 shall not
be considered.

In case of multiple contracts, Bidders should indicate in their Bids the
individual contracts in which they are interested. The Employer shall
qualify each Bidder for the maximum combination of contracts for
which the Bidder has thereby indicated its interest and for which the
Bidder meets the appropriate aggregate requirements. The
Qualification Criteria and Requirements are mentioned in
Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

If the Bid, which results in the lowest Evaluated Bid Price, is twenty
per cent (20%) or more, lower than the Employer's estimate, and
unless the Employer provides justification that the estimate is
inaccurate, the Employer shall require the Bidder to produce detailed
price analyses for any or all items of the Schedules, to demonstrate
the internal consistency of those prices and priced quantities with the
construction methods, resources and schedule proposed, as well as
the Works Requirements. Notwithstanding the provisions of ITB 14.2
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which shall not be applicable, if one or several inconsistencies are
evidenced, the Bid shall be declared non-compliant and rejected.

Any change in the structure or formation of a Bidder after being
prequalified and invited to bid (including, in the case of a JV, any
change in the structure or formation of any member thereto) shall be
subject to the written approval of the Employer. Such approval shall
be denied if (i) as a consequence of the change, the Bidder no longer
substantially meets the prequalification criteria; or (ii) in the opinion
of the Employer, the change may result in a substantial reduction in
competition. Any such change should be submitted to the Employer
not later than fourteen (14) days after the date of the Invitation for
Bids.

The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder
that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and
substantially responsive Bid either continues to meet (if
prequalification applies) or meets (if post qualification applies) the
qualifying criteria specified in Section Il - Evaluation and
Quialification Criteria.

The determination shall be based upon an examination of the
documentary evidence of the Bidder’s qualifications submitted by the
Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17.1.

An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the
Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in
disqualification of the Bid, in which event the Employer shall proceed
to the next lowest evaluated Bid to make a similar determination of
that Bidder’s qualifications to perform satisfactorily.

The Employer reserves the right to annul the bidding process and
reject all Bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby
incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all Bids
submitted and specifically, Bid securities, shall be promptly returned
to the Bidders.

F. Award of Contract

The Employer shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially
responsive Bids established in accordance with ITB 35.2 to
determine the lowest evaluated Bid.

Subject to ITB 38.1, the Employer shall award the Contract to the
Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated
Bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents,
provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to
perform the Contract satisfactorily.

Prior to the expiration of the period of Bid validity, the Employer shall
notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been
accepted. The natification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of
Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall
specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in
consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the
requirement for the Contractor to remedy any defects therein
(hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms
called the "Accepted Contract Amount”). At the same time, the
Employer shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the
Bidding.
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Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, the notification of
award shall constitute a binding Contract.

The Employer shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful
Bidder who, after notification of award in accordance with ITB 40.1,
requests in writing the grounds on which its Bid was not selected.

In exceptional circumstances, a contract negotiation may be needed.
In such case, the Employer shall send to the successful Bidder a
letter of invitation to negotiate which should not be mistaken as a
Letter of Acceptance which, under FIDIC Conditions of Contract,
triggers contractual obligations from both Parties. The Letter of
Acceptance shall be sent once the contract negotiation ends
successfully. Minutes of negotiation meetings, and agreements
reached therein, shall be attached to the Letter of Acceptance.

Promptly upon natification, the Employer shall send the successful
Bidder the Contract Agreement.

Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement,
the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Employer.

Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of notification of award
from the Employer, the successful Bidder shall furnish the
performance security in accordance with the General Conditions of
Contract, subject to ITB 36, using for that purpose the Performance
Security Form included in Section X - Contract Forms, or another
form acceptable to the Employer. If the performance security
furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be
issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined
by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Employer. A foreign
institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial
institution located in the Employer’s Country.

Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned
Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient
grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid
security or execution of the Bid-Securing Declaration. In that event
the Employer may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated
Bidder whose offer is substantially responsive and is determined by
the Employer to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.
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Section Il = Bid Data Sheet

A. Introduction

ITB 1.1

The number of the Invitation for Bids is: CWWDA/AFD/W2/2022

ITB 1.1

The Employer is: Coast Water Works Development Agency
P.O. BOX 90417-80100, Mombasa

ITB 1.1

The name of the international Procurement Competition (IPC) is:

Construction of Water Distribution Pipelines and Sanitation Facilities in
Mombasa

The identification number of the IPC is;: CWWDA/AFD/W2/2022

The number and identification of lots (contracts) comprising this IPC is: N/A

ITB 2.1

The name of the Project is: Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation
Systems in Mombasa — Mwache Project (CKE 1103)

ITB 4.1

Maximum number of members in the JV shall be: three (3)

ITB 4.5

This bidding process IS Not subject to prequalification

B. Bidding Documents

ITB 7.1

For clarification purposes only, the Employer's address is:

Attention: Chief Executive Officer,

Coast Water Works Development Agency
Address: P.O. BOX 90417-80100, Mombasa
Electronic mail address: info@cwwda.go.ke

Web page: www.cwwda.go.ke

ITB 7.4

A Pre-Bid meeting shall take place at the following date, time and place:
Date: 8" November 2022
Time: 1000 hrs Local Time
Place: At the Coast Water Works Development Agency Boardroom,
Mikindani Street, Off Nkrumah Road in Mombasa
A Site visit conducted by the Employer shall be organised after the pre-bid meeting.

Participation of the Bidders at the Pre-Bid meeting and subsequent site visit is
Mandatory.

The Certification of participation and the Pre-Bid meeting protocol have to be
submitted as part of the offer.

ITB 7.6

Non-Attendance at the Pre-Bid Meeting / Site Visit will be a cause for
disqualification of a bidder.

C. Preparation of Bids
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ITB 10.1 The language of the Bid is: English
All correspondence exchange shall be in the English language. Language for
translation of supporting documents and printed literature is English.

ITB 111 The following schedules shall be submitted with the Bid:

(a,b,cef,g) | - Letter of Bid and the Bidding Forms in accordance with ITB 12;

- Completed schedules as required, including Price Schedules, in accordance
with ITB 12 and 14 and as indicated in the BDS;

- Bid Security in accordance with ITB 19.1;

- Written confirmation authorising the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder,
in accordance with ITB 20.2;

- Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Social and Environmental Responsibility
duly signed, in accordance with ITB 12;

- Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder’s
continued qualified status or, if post-qualification applies, as specified in
accordance with ITB 4.5, the Bidder’s qualifications to perform the contract if its
Bid is accepted;

- Technical proposal in accordance with ITB 16;

- Certificate of Incorporation and JV Agreement in case of Joint Venture Bidder

- Tax Clearance Certificate in the Country of Incorporation

- Acopy of the recent utility bill showing registered place of business of the bidder.

- Aletter from the bidder’s bank authorizing the Employer to seek references.

ITB 11.1(b) The Bidder shall submit with its Bid the following additional documents:

Bills of Quantities

Contractors Organogram

Schedule of Sub-Contractors, if any, including details of work for which the
Sub-Contractor shall be employed, Value and % of Bid Price of Works sub-
contracted and details of Sub-Contractor’s experience in that field of work.
Mobilisation Schedule

Program of Works - Programme for execution of the whole of the works.

Schedule of Projected Cash-Flow — should be based on the outline
Programme for execution of the whole of the Works.

Method Statement — Method Statement for execution of the whole of the works.
Schedule of Payment Currencies.
Schedule of Materials / Equipment Suppliers

A signed undertaking between the bidder and the suppliers of ferrous pipes
and HDPE pipes that the prices will be valid for the next 30 months.

ITB 11.1 (h)

The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its bid:
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1) Code of Conduct (ESHS)

The Bidder shall submit its Code of Conduct that will apply to its employees and
subcontractors, to ensure compliance with its Environmental, Social, Health and
Safety (ESHS) obligations under the contract. The risks to be addressed by the
Code include risks associated with labour influx, spread of communicable
diseases, sexual harassment, gender-based violence, sexual exploitation and
abuse, illicit behaviour and crime, and maintaining a safe environment.

In addition, the Bidder shall detail how this Code of Conduct will be implemented.
This will include how it will be introduced into conditions of
employment/engagement, what training will be provided, how it will be monitored
and how the Contractor proposes to deal with any breaches.

The Contractor shall be required to implement the agreed Code of Conduct upon
Contract Award.

2) Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (MSIP) to manage the
(ESHS) risks

The Bidder shall submit Management Strategies and Implementation Plans
(MSIP) to manage the following key Environmental, Social, Health and Safety
(ESHS) risks:

i) Traffic Management Plan to ensure safety of local communities from
construction traffic.

i) Water Resource Protection Plan to prevent contamination of drinking
water while working alongside existing active pipelines.

iii)  Community Engagement Plan to prevent child labour, child sexual abuse,
community health and safety, etc.

iv)  Safety Plan to ensure occupational and community health and safety.

V) Waste Management Plan for management of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes

vi)  Excessive noise, vibrations, and air pollution.

vii)  Strategy for obtaining Consents/Permits prior to the start of relevant
works such as opening a quarry or borrow pit and identification of dump
areas for surplus excavated material.

viii) Gender based violence and sexual exploitation and abuse (GBV/SEA)
prevention and response action plan.

The Contractor shall be required to submit for approval, and subsequently implement,
the Contractor's Environment and Social Management Plan (C-ESMP), in
accordance with the Particular Conditions of Contract Sub-Clause 16.2, that includes
the agreed Management Strategies and Implementation Plans described above.

ITB 13.1 Alternative Bids shall not be permitted.

ITB 13.2 Alternative technical solutions shall not be permitted.

ITB 13.5 Alternative times for completion of the Works shall not be permitted.

ITB 14.5 The prices quoted by the Bidder shall not be subject to adjustment during the
performance of the Contract.

ITB 14.7 This Contract is exempted from VAT.
Other taxes, duties and fees shall be deemed included in the rates..

ITB 15.1 The prices shall be quoted by the bidder in Kenyan Shillings (KES.).

A Bidder expecting to incur expenditures in other currencies for inputs to the Works
supplied from outside the Employer’s country (referred to as the “foreign currency
requirements”) and wishing to be paid accordingly, shall indicate up to three foreign
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currencies of their choice expressed as a percentage of the bid price, together with
the exchange rates used in the calculations in the appropriate form(s) included in
Section IV. Bidding Forms.

ITB 18.1 The Bid Validity Period shall be 120 days.

ITB 18.3(a) | The Bid Price shall be adjusted as follows Not Applicable

ITB 19.1 A Bid Security shall be required.

The amount and currency of the Bid security shall be: Fifty Million Kenya Shillings
(KES.50,000,000/-).
A Bid-Securing Declaration shall not be required.

ITB 19.3 (a) | The Bid Security shall be an unconditional on-demand guarantee issued by a
reputable bank in an eligible country.

If a foreign Bank provides the guarantee, then it should have a
corresponding reputable bank in Kenya.

The Bid Security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the validity period
of the Bid.

ITB 20.1 In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: Two (2) paper copies
In addition to the paper copies, one electronic copy of the whole scanned bid
should be submitted in a flash drive. The priced Bill of Quantities should also
be submitted in soft copy in MS Excel format using the function ‘Round’ to
two decimal places.

All copies must be paginated.

ITB 20.2 The written confirmation of authorisation to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist
of:

(@) The name and description of the documentation required to
demonstrate the authority of the signatory to sign the Bid such as a
“sealed” Power of Attorney; and

(b) In the case of Bids submitted by an existing or intended JV an
undertaking signed by all parties

(i) stating that all parties shall be jointly and severally liable, if so
required in accordance with ITB 4,

(i) nominating a Representative who shall have the authority to
conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the parties of
the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is
awarded the Contract, during contract execution.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

ITB 22.1 For Bid submission purposes only, the Employer's address is:

Attention: The Chief Executive Officer,
Coast Water Works Development Agency,
Mikindani Street, Off Nkrumah Road, Mombasa
Address: CEOs Boardroom
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The deadline for Bid submission is:
Date: 13" December 2022
Time: 1200hrs Local Time

Bidders shall not have the option of submitting their Bids electronically.

ITB 25.1 The Bid opening shall take place at:
Address: CEOs Boardroom
Date: 13t December 2022
Time: 1205 hrs Local Time

ITB 25.3 The Letter of Bid and Priced Bill of Quantities shall be initialled by Four (4)
representatives of the Employer conducting Bid opening.
Each Bid shall be initialled by all representatives and shall be numbered.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

ITB 32.1 The currency that shall be used for Bid evaluation and comparison purposes to
convert all Bid price(s) expressed in various currencies into a single currency is:
Kenya Shillings
The source of exchange rate shall be: The Central Bank of Kenya
The date for the exchange rate shall be the date of Bid submission and the rate
shall be the selling rate.

ITB 33.1 A margin of preference Shall Not apply.

ITB 34.1 At this time the Employer does not intend to execute certain specific parts of the
Works by subcontractors selected in advance (nominated subcontractors).

ITB 34.3 a) Contractor’s proposed subcontracting: Maximum percentage of subcontracting

permitted is: 20% of the total contract amount or 20% of the volume of Work.

b) Bidders planning to subcontract more than 10% of total volume of work shall specify,
in the Letter of Bid, the activity (ies) or parts of the Works to be subcontracted along
with complete details of the subcontractors and their qualification and experience.
The qualification and experience of the sub-contractors must meet the minimum
criteria for the relevant work to be sub-contracted failing which such sub-contractors
will not be permitted to participate.

c) Sub-contractors’ qualification and experience will not be considered for evaluation of
the Bidder. The Bidder on its own (without taking into account the qualification and
experience of the sub-contractor) should meet the qualification criteria.

F. Award of Contract
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Section Il — Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains all the criteria that the Employer shall use to evaluate Bids and qualify Bidders. In
accordance with ITB 35, 36 and ITB 37, no other factors, methods or criteria shall be used. The Bidder
shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section IV - Bidding Forms.

Wherever a Bidder is required to state a monetary amount, Bidders should indicate the KES. equivalent
using the rate of exchange determined as follows:

- For construction turnover or financial data required for each year - Exchange rate prevailing
on the last day of the respective calendar year;

- Value of single contract - Exchange rate prevailing on the date of the contract.

Exchange rates shall be taken from the publicly available source identified in the ITB 32.1. Any error in
determining the exchange rates in the Bid may be corrected by the Employer.

1 Evaluation
In addition to the criteria listed in ITB 35.2 a) - e), the following criteria shall apply:

1.1  Assessment of adequacy of technical proposal with requirements:

The assessment of the technical proposal submitted by a Bidder shall comprise (a) evaluation of
the Bidder’'s technical capacity to mobilize key equipment and key personnel to carry out the
Works, (b) construction method, (c) construction schedule and (d) sufficiently detailed supply
sources, in accordance with requirements specified in Section VII - Works Requirements.

1.2 Personnel:

The Bidder must demonstrate that it will have a suitably qualified (and in adequate numbers)
minimum Key Personnel, as described in the table below, that are required to perform the
Contract.

The Bidder shall provide details of the Key Personnel and such other Key Personnel that the
Bidder considers appropriate, together with their academic qualifications and work experience.
The Bidder shall complete the relevant Forms in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

The Contractor shall require the Employer’s consent to substitute or replace the Key Personnel
(reference the Particular Conditions of Contract 9.1).

Key Personnel

Tota wor | EXPerence
No. Position Requirements / Qualifications Experience Works
(years) (years)

1. Project Manager BSc. Civil Engineering or 20 10

equivalent

Registered with Engineers Board

of Kenya (EBK) or equivalent
2. Site Agent BSc. Civil Engineering 15 10

Registered as a Professional

Engineer with Engineers Board of

Kenya (EBK) or equivalent
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Tota wor | EXPerence
No. Position Requirements / Qualifications Experience Works
(years) (years)
3. Assistant Site Agent | BSc. Civil Engineering 5 3
(2 positions) Registered as Graduate Engineers
with Engineers Board of Kenya
(EBK) or equivalent
4. Engineering Surveyor | BSc. Surveying 10 5
Registered with the Institute of
Surveyors of Kenya (ISK) or
equivalent
5. Assistant Engineering | Higher  National Diploma or 5 3
Surveyor (2 positions) | equivalent
6. Foremen 6 positions | Diploma in Civil Engineering / 10 5
(4 positions water, 2 | Building Construction or
positions civil works) | equivalent
7. Certified Pipe Fitters | Certificate 10 5
and Plumbers (6
positions)
8. Certified Masons (2 | Certificate 10 5
positions)
9. Environmental Expert | Degree in Environmental Science 10 5
or related field
NEMA Lead Expert
10. On Site | Degree in Environmental Science 6 3
Environmentalist (2 | or related field
positions)
11. Sociologist / RAP (2 | Degree in Sociology / Community 6 3
positions) Development or equivalent
12. Health &  Safety | First Degree and a Course in 6 3
Specialist (2 | Occupation Health and Safety
positions)
13 Civil Engineering | BSc. Civil Engineering (Local - -
Interns (4 Nr) Graduates).

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records using
Forms PER-1 and PER-2 included in Section IV - Bidding Forms.
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1.3 Equipment:

The Bidder must demonstrate that it can obtain (purchase, lease or rent) the key equipment listed

hereafter:

No. Equipment Type and Characteristics Minigg;:“l;léjdmber
1 Excavator — with 0.75m?3 Bucket and 1.5 Tonne Hammer 2
2 Backhoe Loader/Excavators 4
3 Mini Site Dumper 1m?3 2
4 Compressors (5,000 I/min) with two outlets 2
5 Air Compressor Pneumatic Jack Hammers 4
6 1ton Walk Behind Double Drum Vibratory Roller 2
7 Plate Compactors 6
8 Portable De-Watering Pumps 2
9 Generator — 15 kVA 2
10 Portable Diesel/Petrol Welding Set, and Gas cutting sets 2
11 HDPE Butt fusion welding sets (for OD 32mm up to 355mm) 4
12 Pick-Ups — 1 Ton 4
13 Tipper Lorries 7/ 10/ 15-ton 2
14 16Ton Flatbed Truck 2
15 | Crane 1
16 | Total Station and accessories (for all surveying works) 2
17 Mechanical Pressure Testing Equipment (for Pipelines up to PN16) 4
18 | Concrete Mixers — capacity 0.3m?3 4
19 | Concrete Poker Vibrators (25mm — 45mm) 2

The Bidder shall provide further details of proposed items of equipment using Form EQU in
Section IV - Bidding Forms.

1.4 Domestic Preference

No Margin of Preference for Domestic Bidders shall be applied.

1.5 Multiple Contracts

Not Applicable.

1.6  Alternative Completion Times
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Not Applicable.

1.7 Technical Alternatives

Not Applicable.

1.8 Specialized Subcontractors

Not Applicable.
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Qualification Criteria

1. Eligibility

Joint Venture (existing or intended)
— . Single . .
Criterion Requirement Entity All Parties Each One Submission Requirements
Combined Member Member
1.1 Nationality Nationality in accordance with ITB Must meet Must meet Must meet N/A Forms ELI-1.1 and ELI-1.2,
4.3 requirement requirement | requirement with attachments
1.2 Conflict of | No conflicts of interest in Must meet Must meet Must meet N/A Letter of Bid
Interest accordance with ITB 4.2 requirement requirement | requirement
1.3 AFD Eligibility Not being ineligible to AFD Must meet Must meet Must meet N/A Statement of Integrity
financing, as described in ITB 4.3 requirement requirement | requirement (appendix to Letter of Bid)
1.4 State-Owned Meet conditions of ITB 4.3 Must meet Must meet Must meet N/A Forms ELI-1.1 and ELI-1.2,
Entity requirement requirement | requirement with attachments
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Historical Contract Non-Performance

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

Criterion Requirement Single Entit . Submission Requirements
q g y All Parties Each Member One q
Combined Member
21 History of Termination of a contract! did not occur | Must meet Must meet Must meet N/A Form CON-2
Non-Performing as a result of Bidder's default in the requirement?, requirement requirement?
Contracts past five (5) years.
2.2 Suspension Not under suspension based on Must meet Must meet Must meet N/A Letter of Bid
Based on execution of a Bid Securing Declaration | requirement requirement requirement
Execution of Bid pursuant to ITB 4.4.
Securing
Declaration by the
Employer
2.3  Pending Litigation | All pending litigation shall in total not Must meet N/A Must meet N/A Form CON-2

represent more than one hundred
percent (100%) of the Bidder's net
worth and shall be treated as resolved
against the Bidder.

requirement

requirement

Non-performance shall include all terminations of contracts where (a) non-performance was not challenged by the contractor, including through referral to the dispute resolution mechanism under

the respective contract, and (b) contracts that were so challenged but fully settled against the contractor. Non-performance shall not include contracts where Employers decision was overruled by
the dispute resolution mechanism.

This requirement also applies to contracts executed by the Bidder as JV member.
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Criterion

Requirement

Financial Situation and Performance

Single Entity

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

All Parties
Combined

Each Member

One Member

Submission Requirements

3.1

Financial
Capabilities

@)

(ii)

The Bidder shall demonstrate that it
has access to, or has available,
liquid assets, unencumbered real
assets, lines of credit, and other
financial means (independent of
any contractual advance payment)
sufficient to meet the construction
cash flow requirements estimated
as KES.400,000,000/- (Kenya
Shillings Four Hundred
Million) or equivalent in
freely convertible currency
for the subject contract(s) net of the
Bidder’'s other commitments

The Bidder shall also demonstrate,
to the satisfaction of the Employer,
that it has adequate sources of
finance to meet the cash flow
requirements on works currently in
progress and for future contract
commitments

(iii) The audited balance sheets or, if

not required by the laws of the
Bidder's country, other financial
statements acceptable to the
Employer, for the last Three (3)
years shall be submitted and
must demonstrate the current
soundness of the Bidder's financial

Must meet
requirement

Must meet
requirement

Must meet
requirement

Must meet
requirement

Must meet
requirement

Must meet
requirement

N/A

N/A

Must meet
requirement

N/A

N/A

Must meet
requirement

Forms FIN-3.1 and FIN-3.3

Forms FIN-3.1 and FIN-3.4

Form FIN-3.1, with
attachments
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Financial Situation and Performance

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

Criterion Requirement Single Entity All Parties Each Member | One Member Submission Requirements
Combined

position®. The Bidder's financial
position will be deemed sound if at
least two (2) of the following four (4)
criteria are met:

a) Average earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation,
and amortization (EBITDA)
for the last five (5) years > 0;

b) Total equity (net worth) for
the last five (5) years > 0;

c) Average liquidity ratio for
the last five (5) years > 1
((Current assets) / (Current
liabilities) > 1);

d) Average indebtedness ratio
for the last five (5) years <6
((Total financial liabilities) /
(EBITDA) < 6).

3 The Bidder and its parties shall provide copies of financial statements for 5 years pursuant Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualifications Criteria, Sub-factor 3.2. The financial statements shall:

(a) reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or in case of JV member, and not an affiliated entity (such as parent company or group member).
(b) be independently audited or certified in accordance with local legislation.
(c) be complete, including all notes to the financial statements.

(d) correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited.
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3.

Financial Situation and Performance

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

Two Hundred Million) or
equivalent in a freely
convertible currency, calculated
as total certified payments received for
contracts in progress and/or completed
within the last 5 years.

requirement

Criterion Requirement Single Entity All Parties Each Member | One Member Submission Requirements
Combined
3.2 Minimum Annual Minimum average annual construction Must. meet Must. meet Must meet. Must meet Form FIN-3.2
Turnover tmover of KES. 1,200,000,000/- | reduirement requirement twenty-five flf'[)(/J per cent
(Kenya Shillings One Billion, per cent [50%)] of the
(25%) of the | requirement
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Joint Venture (existing or intended)
Criterion Requirements Single Entity All Parties Submission Requirements
. Each Member | One Member
Combined
41  General Experience under construction Must meet Must meet | Must meet Lead member | Form EXP-4.1
Construction contracts in the role of prime requirement requirement requirement must meet
Experience contractor, JV member, requirement
subcontractor, or management
contractor for at least the last 5
years, starting 15t January
2016.
4.2  (a) Specific (i) A minimum number of similar* Must meet Must meet N/A Lead member | Form EXP-4.2(a)
Construction & | contracts specified below that have requirement requirement’ must meet
Contract been satisfactorily and substantially® requirement
Management completed as a prime contractor,
Experience joint venture member®, management
contractor or subcontractor between
15t January 2016 and application
submission deadline:
Two (2) contracts, each of
minimum value
KES.1,200,000,000/- (Kenya
Shillings One Billion, Two
Hundred Million)
4.2  (b) Specific For the above and any other Must meet Must meet N/A Lead member | Form EXP-4.2(b)
Experience contracts completed and under requirement requirement must meet
implementation as prime contractor, requirement

The similarity shall be based on the physical size, complexity, and technicity of the Works. Adding up small value contracts (less than the value specified under requirement) to meet the overall
requirement will not be accepted.

Substantial completion shall be based on 80% or more works completed under the contract.
For contracts under which the Bidder participated as a joint venture member or subcontractor, only the Bidder’s share, by value, shall be considered to meet this requirement.

In the case of a JV, the value of contracts completed by its members shall not be aggregated to determine whether the requirement of the minimum value of a single contract has been met. For
instance, if the criterion mentions "two (2) contracts with a minimum value of 50M$ each", a JV composed of 3 members and having carried out four (4) contracts of 30M$ each shall not be qualified.
On the other hand, if 2 of the 3 members of the JV each carried out one (1) contract of 50M$, the criterion is met, even if the third member does not have any contract of this value.
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Joint Venture (existing or intended)

Criterion Requirements Single Entity i Submission Requirements
LA Each Member | One Member

Combined

joint venture member, management
contractor or subcontractor® on or
after the first day of the calendar
year during the period stipulated in
4.2 (a) above, a minimum
construction experience in the
following key activities successfully
completed®:

Experience in Construction
of Water Pipelines:

At least one (1) Project
involving Construction of
Ferrous / HDPE / uPvC
Water Distribution Network
Pipelines in highly built-up /
congested Urban Areas,
sizes ranging from 32mm
dia to 400mm dia at a rate of
at least 6km per month.

For contracts under which the Bidder participated as a joint venture member or subcontractor, only the Bidder's share shall be counted to meet this requirement.

For example, experience of works while in operation may be required under this criterion. Volume, number or rate of production of any key activity can be demonstrated in one or more contracts
combined if executed during same time period. The rate of production shall be the annual production rate for the key construction activity (or activities).

9
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Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS)'®

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

Criterion Requirement Single Entity All Parties Each Submission Requirements
) One Member
Combined Member
5.1 ESHS Availability of in-house policies Must meet Must meet | Must meet | Must meet The ESHS Ethics Charter of the

Documentation

and procedures acceptable to the
Employer for ESHS management:

1. Existence of an Ethics
Charter.

2. Existence of a system for
monitoring compliance with
ESHS commitments for the
Bidder's subcontractors and
all its partners.

3. Existence of official company
procedures for the
management of the following
relevant points:

[Only select the relevant points
(between 3 and 5) that apply for
the Works by checking the
appropriate boxes]

L ESHS resources and facilities
and ESHS monitoring
organization;

U Project Areas management
(base camps, quarries,
borrow pits, storage areas);

U Health & Safety on worksites;

requirement

requirement

requirement

requirement

company or equivalent must be
provided.

A procedure or information on how
the Bidder ensures that all
members of the Joint Venture,
subcontractors, suppliers and
temporary labour (i) are aware and
(ii) meet ESHS requirements must
be provided.

Official internal procedure
documents on the topics indicated
must be provided.
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5.

Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS)'®

Criterion

Requirement

Single Entity

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

All Parties
Combined

Each
Member

One Member

Submission Requirements

U 000D

oo

Local recruitment and ESHS
trainings of local staff
(capacity building), ESHS
trainings of subcontractors
and local partners (transfer of
knowledge);

Relations with stakeholders,
information and consultation
of local communities and
authorities;

Traffic management;
Hazardous products;
Wastewater (effluents);
Protection of water resources;

Atmospheric emissions, noise
and vibrations;

Waste management;

Biodiversity: protection of
fauna and flora;

Site rehabilitation and
revegetation;

Erosion and sedimentation;
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Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS)'®

Joint Venture (existing or intended)

Criterion Requirement Single Entity All Parties Each Submission Requirements
. One Member
Combined Member
U cControl of infectious and
communicable diseases
(HIV/AIDS, malaria, etc.).
5.2 ESHS Dedicated Availability of in-house personnel Must meet Must meet N/A Must meet Organizational chart evidencing filled

Personnel

dedicated to ESHS issues:
Environmental and Social
Manager, and/or Health and
Safety Manager.

requirement

requirement

requirement

ESHS position(s)
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Section IV - Bidding Forms
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Letter of Bid

[The Bidder shall prepare his Letter of Bid on a Letterhead paper specifying his name and address.]

To:

Date:

IPC No.:

Invitation for Bid No.:

Alternative No.:

We, the undersigned, declare that:

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

f)

a)

h)

We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda
issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB 8);

We have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4.2;

We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Employer based on execution of a
Bid Securing Declaration in the Employer’s country in accordance with ITB 4.4;

We offer to execute in conformity with the Bidding Documents the following works:

The total price of our Bid, excluding VAT and excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

0] In case of only one lot, total price (excluding VAT) of the Bid: ;

(ii) In case of multiple lots, total price (excluding VAT) of each lot: ;

(i) In case of multiple lots, total price (excluding VAT) of all lots (sum of all lots): ;

(iv)  The total amount of VAT is:

The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

() The discounts offered are: ;

(i)  The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts
is shown below:

Our Bid shall be valid for a period of days from the date fixed for the Bid
submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it shall remain binding upon
us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;

If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with ITB 43 of
the Bidding Documents;

We are not participating, as a Bidder, in more than one Bid in this bidding process in accordance
with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;

We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your
notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is
prepared and executed,;
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k) We acknowledge and agree that the Employer reserves the right to annul the bidding process
and reject all Bids at any time prior to contract award without thereby incurring any liability to us;
and

) We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf
will engage in any type of fraud and corruption.

Name of the Bidder?:

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder?:

Title of the person signing the Bid:

Signature of the person named above:

Date signed: day of:

In the case of the Bid submitted by a JV specify the name of the JV as Bidder.

2 Pperson signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid.
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Appendix 1 to Bid — Schedule of Adjustment Data

Table of Weightings

Weightings for each payment
currency
2
Factgr .Of Range of Values permitted (1) 2) Total
description (foreign (3)
currency: € or
KES.)

(national
currency)

X Non-Adjustable [To be entered by the Employer]

(a) Labour [To be entered by the Employer]

(b) [To be entered by the Employer]

(c) [To be entered by the Employer]

etc. [To be entered by the Employer]

Total 1.00
[The Employer shall indicate (i) the value of the fixed element X in the price adjustment formula
in Columns (1) and (3), and (ii) acceptable ranges for the weightings (a), (b), (c) of the adjustment
factors in the formula.]

The Bidder shall indicate in Columns (2) the specific weightings for each factor and Bid currency, and
in Column (3) the sub-totals for each factor, which must be within the range specified by the Employer
in Column (1), respectively; furthermore, the sum of the sub-totals in Column (3) must be equal to
1 (one).
A formula shall be used for each payment currency, to be derived from the above Table as follows: the
weightings to be used in each formula will be derived from the values in each currency column,
respectively, by dividing each individual value by the sum of the values in the given column.
Table A: National Currency

Index Code Index Publication Source for the Base Value in [month]*

Description/ Index
Identification

M

)

()

1 Insert the month of the Base Date, i.e. the month of the Deadline for Bid Submission in accordance with ITB Clause 22.




Section IV — Bidding Forms 45

Table B: Foreign Currency

The Bidder shall fill a table similar to the following one for each foreign currency of payment, as
appropriate.

Index Code Index Publication Source for the Base Value in [month]?
Description/ Index
Identification
@)
(S)

)

Bidder's Signature:

Example:

The following example shows a table of weightings and the corresponding price adjustment formula
which are derived from it, on the basis of the following assumptions:

- Three weightings/factors are shown in this example: X is the non-adjustable portion and two
adjustment factors (a and b) contribute to price adjustment through the variation of Indices T and
S respectively, for which the respective ranges permitted by the Employer and values selected
by the Bidder are shown in the table; these values are to be used in the price adjustment formula.

- Two payment currencies are shown in this example: the national currency (I) and a foreign
currency (f), the indices T and S are the respective indices in the country of the currency.

- The data in bold are those specified by the Employer in the Bidding Documents, whereas the
other data are provided either by the Bidder in its Bid or by the Contractor in the payment request.

Weightings for each
Factor and .
o Range of Values permitted payment currency Totals
Description
n e
X 0,15 0,05 0,10 0,15
a 0,30-0,50 0,15 0,25 0,40
b 0,25 -0,45 0,20 0,25 0,45
Totals 0,40 0,60 1,00

Formula to be used for calculation of adjustment of payments:

0,05 N 015TIn N 0,20 S1In
0,40 0,40 Tlo 0,40 Slo

_010 025Tfn  0.25Sfn
0,60 0,60Tfo 0,60 Sfo

Payment in national currency (n): Pln

Payment in foreign currency (f): Pfn
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Appendix 2 to Bid - Summary of Payment Currencies

Table: Option A

To be used only with Option A: "Bidders to quote entirely in local currency"
(Sub-clause BDS 15.1)

For [Insert name of Section of the Works]
B)
D)
A) Rate of ©) Percentage of Total
exchange Local currency . .
Name of payment currency Amount of (local equivalent Bid Price
currency currency per (C=AxB) oxc/
) . TPB)
unit of foreign
Local currency: 1.00
Foreign currency: € or US$
Total Bid Price 100.00
Provisional Sums expressed [To be [To be entered by
in local currency entered by the Employer]
the
Employer]

TOTAL BID PRICE (including
provisional sum)

Table: Option B

To be used only with Option B: "Bidders allowed to quote in local and foreign currencies”
(Sub-Clause BDS 15.1)

Summary of currencies of the Bid for [insert name of Section of the
Works]

Name of currencies Amounts payable

Local currency:

Foreign currency (€ or US$):

Provisional Sums expressed in local currency: [To be entered by the Employer]
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Appendix 3 to Bid - Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Environmental and

Social Responsibility

Reference of the bid or proposal (the "Contract™)

To:

(the "Contracting Authority")

We recognise and accept that Agence Francaise de Développement ("AFD") only finances
projects of the Contracting Authority subject to its own conditions which are set out in the
Financing Agreement which benefits directly or indirectly to the Contracting Authority. As a matter
of consequence, no legal relationship exists between AFD and our company, our joint venture or
our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants. The Contracting
Authority retains exclusive responsibility for the preparation and implementation of the
procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the
Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works,
plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

We hereby certify that neither we nor any other member of our joint venture or any of our suppliers,
contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants are in any of the following situations:

2.1 Being bankrupt, wound up or ceasing our activities, having our activities administered by
the courts, having entered into receivership, reorganisation or being in any analogous
situation arising from any similar procedure;

2.2 Having been:

a) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res
judicata in the country where the Contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of
any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a
contract (in the event of such conviction, you may attach to this Statement of Integrity
supporting information showing that this conviction is not relevant in the context of
this Contract);

b) subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European
Union or by the competent authorities of the country where we are constituted, for
fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process
or performance of a contract (in the event of such sanction, you may attach to this
Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this sanction is not
relevant in the context of this Contract);

c) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res
judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the
procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;

2.3 Being listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or
France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace
and security;

2.4 Having been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against
us for significant or persistent failure to comply with our contractual obligations during
contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still
pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against us;

2.5 Not having fulfilled our fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with
the legal provisions of either the country where we are constituted or the Contracting
Authority's country;

2.6 Being subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and being listed on the website
http://www.worldbank.org/debarr (in the event of such exclusion, you may attach to this
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2.7

Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this exclusion is not relevant in
the context of this Contract);

Having created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation
requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of this Contract.

3. We hereby certify that neither we, nor any of the members of our joint venture or any of our
suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants are in any of the following
situations of conflict of interest:

3.1 Being an affiliate controlled by the Contracting Authority or a shareholder controlling the
Contracting Authority, unless the stemming conflict of interest has been brought to the
attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction;

3.2 Having a business or family relationship with a Contracting Authority's staff involved in the
procurement process or the supervision of the resulting Contract, unless the stemming
conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction;

3.3 Being controlled by or controlling another bidder or consultant, or being under common
control with another bidder or consultant, or receiving from or granting subsidies directly or
indirectly to another bidder or consultant, having the same legal representative as another
bidder or consultant, maintaining direct or indirect contacts with another bidder or
consultant which allows us to have or give access to information contained in the respective
applications, bids or proposals, influencing them or influencing decisions of the Contracting
Authority;

3.4 Being engaged in a consulting services activity, which, by its nature, may be in conflict with
the assignments that we would carry out for the Contracting Authority;

3.5 Inthe case of procurement of goods, works or plants:

a) Having prepared or having been associated with a consultant who prepared
specifications, drawings, calculations and other documentation to be used in the
procurement process of this Contract;

b) Having been recruited (or being proposed to be recruited) ourselves or any of our
affiliates, to carry out works supervision or inspection for this Contract.

4, If we are a state-owned entity, and to compete in a procurement process, we certify that we have
legal and financial autonomy and that we operate under commercial laws and regulations.

5. We undertake to bring to the attention of the Contracting Authority, which will inform AFD, any
change in situation with regard to points 2 to 4 here above.

6. In the context of the procurement process and performance of the corresponding contract:

6.1 We have not and we will not engage in any dishonest conduct (act or omission) deliberately
indented to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate someone's
consent, to make them circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate their
internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit;

6.2 We have not and we will not engage in any dishonest conduct (act or omission) contrary to
our legal or regulatory obligations or our internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit;

6.3 We have not promised, offered or given and we will not promise, offer or give, directly or

indirectly to (i) any Person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial
mandate within the State of the Contracting Authority regardless of whether that Person
was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature
of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the Person occupies, (ii) any other
Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned
company, or who provides a public service, or (iii) any other person defined as a Public
Officer by the national laws of the Contracting Authority’s country, an undue advantage of
any kind, for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain
from acting in his official capacity;
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6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

We have not promised, offered or given and we will not promise, offer or give, directly or
indirectly to any Person who occupies an executive position in a private sector entity or
works for such an entity, regardless of the nature of his/her capacity, any undue advantage
of any kind, for himself or another Person or entity for such Person to perform or refrain
from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations;

We have not and we will not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award
process to the detriment of the Contracting Authority and, in particular, in any
anti-competitive practice having for object or for effect to prevent, restrict or distort
competition, namely by limiting access to the market or the free exercise of competition by
other undertakings;

Neither we nor any of the members of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors,
subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants shall acquire or supply any equipment nor
operate in any sectors under an embargo of the United Nations, the European Union or
France;

We commit ourselves to comply with and ensure that all of our suppliers, contractors,
subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants comply with international environmental and
labour standards, consistent with laws and regulations applicable in the country of
implementation of the Contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International
Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties. Moreover, we shall
implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the
environmental and social commitment plan (ESCP) provided by the Contracting Authority.

7. We, as well as members of our joint venture and our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors,
consultants or subconsultants authorise AFD to inspect accounts, records and other documents
relating to the procurement process and performance of the contract and to have them audited
by auditors appointed by AFD.

Name:

In the capacity of:

Duly empowered to sign in the name and on behalf of?;

Signature:

Dated:

1 In case of joint venture, insert the name of the joint venture. The person who will sign the application, bid or proposal on behalf
of the applicant, bidder or consultant shall attach a power of attorney from the applicant, bidder or consultant.
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Schedules

Bills of Quantities

Rates and prices shall exclude VAT and the Schedules shall identify the VAT
estimate as a separate amount.

The Schedules must be prepared in accordance with the currency alternative
retained in BDS — ITB 15.1.

The Bill of Quantities is in a separate Volume i.e.
- Volume ll of IV:

e Bill of Quantities
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[

Site Organogram

]
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Construction Schedule

[Insert Programme of Works]
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Cash Flow Statement

[Insert Cash Flow Statement]
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Method Statement

[Insert Method Statement]
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Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule
ESHS Amount excluded
Item N° Description Specifications Unit VAT VAIKAEn;c;unt
Clause N° [KES.] '
ESHS 1 Resources allocated to ESHS Clause 4 Lump sum 500,000.00 80,000.00
management
ESHS 2 Drafting and updating the ESHS | Clauses 1, 2, 3,5, | Lump sum
documentation, reporting, | 6,7,9 330,000.00 52,800.00
inspections
ESHS 3 Implementation of the Health and | Clauses 1, 9, 21 Lump sum
Safety Plan: to 25, 27 to 35,
Meetings, health care centre, medical 37,38 2 000.000.00 330.000.00
check-ups, emergencies and B '
evacuations, safety protective
equipment, hygiene
ESHS 4 Accommodation, drinking water, | Clauses 36, 40,
meals and transportation of staff (*) | 41
(*): The Bidder shall detail the financial Nil Nil
conditons of the supply of
accommodation, meals and transport
to its staff:
— Accommodation Lump sum
- Meals Lump sum
—  Transport Lump sum
ESH Traini local i | L
SHS 5 raining and local recruitment | Clauses 8, 39 ump sum 1,000,000.00 160,000.00
management costs
ESHS 6 Protection of adjacent areas, | Clauses 10, 11, Lump sum
biodiversity, prevention of erosion | 12,17, 18 Nil Nil
and wastewater management
ESHS 7 Traffi i heri | 13,14 L
SHS rg |c_, noise and atmospheric | Clauses 13, 14, ump sum 30,000.00 4.800.00
emissions management, land take 42,43, 44
ESHS 8 Waste and hazardous products | Clauses 15, 26 Lump sum Nil Nil
management
ESHS 9 Vegetation clearing and Site | Clauses 16, 19, Lump sum . .
A Nil Nil
rehabilitation 20
Total for Bill ESHS 3,860,000.00 617,600.00

ESHS costs are deemed to cover operations on all Sites (as defined in Clause 1.3 of ESHS Specifications).

Interim payment certificates shall include the portion of each ESHS cost amounting to the percentage of the actual progress
achieved in executing the ESHS measures in compliance with the ESHS Specifications and approved by the Engineer.

If the ESHS specifications are not included in the Bidding Documents, this ESHS Cost Schedule is not applicable.
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Technical Proposal

The Employer will specify, for each section of the technical proposal as listed below, the information and
details that the Bidder must provide in its Bid.

a) Bill of Quantities

b) List of Subcontractors

c) Site Organisation and Method Statement

d) Construction Schedule

e) Personnel proposed (forms PER-1 and PER-2)
f) Equipment proposed (form EQU)
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Alternative Technical Solutions

Proposal for the Parts of the Works for which
Alternative Technical Solutions are permitted

-NONE-
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Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Methodology

The Bidder shall provide an ESHS Methodology providing information on how the Bidder shall meet the
requirements and objectives specified in Section VII - Works Requirements - ESHS Specifications.

The ESHS Methodology submitted shall be in the form of a preliminary draft of the Worksite
Environmental and Social Management Plan (Worksite - ESMP), the content of which is detailed in
Appendix 1 to ESHS Specifications.
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List of Subcontractors

Proposed Subcontractors for Key Activities/Sub-Activities

The following subcontractors and/or manufacturers are proposed for carrying out the key

activity/sub-activity indicated.

Key Activity/Sub-Activity

Proposed Subcontractors

Nationality

Bidders shall submit an undertaking from each proposed subcontractor to confirm that they have read,

understand and will comply with the ESHS obligations using the form hereby attached.




Section IV — Bidding Forms 60

Form of Subcontractor ESHS Undertaking

Date:

Bid No.:

Alternative No.:

Contract title: [insert the name of the Contract]

To: [insert the name of the Employer’s agency]

We, the undersigned, confirm that we have read, understand and will comply with the ESHS
Specifications for the above-mentioned contract.

Name of the proposed subcontractor:

Name and title of the person signing this undertaking on behalf of the subcontractor:

[Signature of the person named above]

[Date signed]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder:

Title of the person signing the Bid:

Signature of the person named above:

Date signed (day/month/year):
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Site Organisation and Method Statement

Each Bidder shall set out details of the Site Organization and Method Statement for the Works to
demonstrate how it will meet the Employer’s objective and requirements. As a minimum, the Method
Statement shall address the following:

a)

b)
<)

d)

f)

Details of the arrangements and methods which the Bidder proposes to implement for the
construction of the Works, in sufficient detail to demonstrate their adequacy to achieve the
requirements of the Contract including completion within the Time for Completion stated in
the Particular Conditions of Contract;

Outline of the arrangements of the Bidder to manage coordination of Site access;

Comments on the geotechnical and subsurface aspects of the Works including materials,
material sources and any constraints;

Comments on logistics and traffic management [as may be appropriate];

Outline of the arrangements and organisation of the Bidder to ensure compliance with the
Works Requirements;

Outline of the arrangements of the Bidder to carry out testing upon completion as specified
in the Works Requirements;
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Construction Schedule

Each Bidder shall set out a detailed Program and Schedule for mobilisation and construction of the
Works to be performed, including estimated starting and finishing dates for individual components and
identification of major milestones and critical path. The proposed Program and Schedule shall be
developed according to Works Requirements and shall address the following:

a) Details of the proposed schedule for obtaining permits that may be necessary in order to
commence the Works, including the preparation of required studies, supporting
information, and applications;

b) Details of mobilisation schedule;
C) Details of submittal of technical details of construction materials for approval;
d) Details of construction material deliveries;

e) Details of the proposed timeline for carrying out the Works within the Time for Completion,
in the form of a bar chart showing notably the critical path;

f) Details of the proposed timeline for the testing, commissioning and handing over of the
completed Works;
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Personnel

Form PER-1: Proposed Personnel

Bidders should provide the names of suitably qualified personnel to meet the specified requirements
stated in Section lll, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The data on their experience should be
supplied using the Form below for each candidate.

1 Title of position (*)
Name

5 Title of position (*)
Name

3. Title of position (*)
Name

4 Title of position (*)
Name

(*): As listed in Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
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Form PER-2: Resume of Proposed Personnel

Name of Bidder:
Position:
Personnel information Name: Date of
birth:
Professional qualifications:
Present employment Name of employer:
Address of employer:
Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel
officer):
Fax: Email:
Job title: Years with present employer:

Summarize professional experience over the last 20 years, in reverse chronological order. Indicate
particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

From To Company / Project / Position / Relevant technical and management experience
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The Bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet
the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. A
separate Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment

Form EQU: Equipment

proposed by the Bidder.

Item of equipment

Equipment
information

Name of manufacturer:

Model and power rating:

Capacity:

Year of manufacture:

Current status

Current location:

Details of current commitments:

Source

Indicate source of the equipment:

O owned
O rented

O Leased

[ specially manufactured

Omit the following information for equipment owned by the Bidder.

Owner

Name of owner:

Address of owner:

Telephone:

Contact name and title:

Fax:

Email:

Agreements

Details of rental / lease / manufacture agreements specific to the project:
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Bidders Qualification Forms

To establish its qualifications to perform the contract in accordance with Section Ill, Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria, the Bidder shall provide the information requested in the corresponding
Information Sheets included hereunder.
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Form ELI-1.1:
Bidder Information Form

Date: [Insert day, month, year]

IPC No. and title: [Insert IPC number and title]
Page [insert number] of [insert total number] pages

Bidder's name:

[insert full name]

In case of Joint Venture (JV), name of each member:

[insert full name of each member in JV]

In case of a JV, Bidder's actual or intended country of constitution:

[indicate country of constitution]

Bidder's actual or intended year of constitution:

[indicate year of constitution]

Bidder's legal address (in country of constitution):

[insert street / number / town or city / country]

Bidder's authorized representative information:
Name:

[insert full name]
Address:

[insert street / number / town or city / country]
Telephone/Fax numbers:

[insert telephone/fax numbers, including country and city codes]
Email address:

[indicate email address]

1. Attached are copies of original documents of:

O Articles of Constitution (or equivalent documents of association) of the legal entity named

above;

a In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1;

a
establishing:
. Legal and financial autonomy;
. Operation under commercial law;

In case of State-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.3, documents

. Establishing that the Bidder is not a dependent agency of the Employer.

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.
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Form ELI-1.2:
Bidder's JV Information Form

[The following table shall be filled by each member of a Joint Venture and, if applicable, by any
specialized subcontractor, and in that case substitute "Bidder's JV member" for "specialized
subcontractor".]

Date: [Insert day, month, year]
IPC No. and title: [Insert IPC number and title]
Page [insert number] of [insert total number] pages

Bidder's JV name:
[insert full name]

Bidder's JV member's name:
[insert full name Bidder's JV Member]

Bidder's JV member's country of constitution:
[indicate country of constitution]

Bidder's JV member's year of constitution:
[indicate year of constitution]

Bidder's JV member's legal address (in country of constitution):
[insert street / number / town or city / country]

Bidder's JV member's authorized representative information:

Name:
[insert full name]

Address:
[insert street / number / town or city / country]

Telephone/Fax numbers:
[insert telephone/fax numbers, including country and city codes]

Email address:
[indicate email address]

1. Attached are copies of original documents of:

O Articles of Constitution (or equivalent documents of association) of the legal entity named
above;

a In case of State-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.3, documents

establishing:
. Legal and financial autonomy;
. Operation under commercial law;

. Establishing that the Bidder is not a dependent agency of the Employer.

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.
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Form CON-2:
Historical Contract Non-Performance, Pending Litigation and Litigation History

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Non-Performed Contracts in accordance with Section Ill - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

a Contract non-performance did not occur since 15t January [insert current year number less 5] specified in Section
I, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 2.1.

a Contract(s) not performed since 1St January [insert current year number less 5] specified in Section Ill,
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 2.1, as indicated below:

Total Contract

Non-performed Amount (current
Year portion of Contract Identification value, currency,
contract exchange rate and

KES. equivalent)

[insert [insert amount Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ | [insert amount]
year] and percentage] | number, and any other identification]

Name of Employer: [insert full name]

Address of Employer: [insert street / number / city of town /
country]

Reason(s) for non-performance: [indicate main reason(s)]
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Pending Litigation, in accordance with Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

a No pending litigation in accordance with Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 2.3

a Pending litigation in accordance with Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 2.3, as indicated

below:
Total Contract
Amount in Amount
Year of . e
; dispute Contract Identification (currency), KES.
dispute :
(currency) Equivalent
(exchange rate)

[insert [insert amount] Contract Identification: [Indicate complete contract name, | [insert amount]
year] number, and any other identification]

Name of Employer: [Insert full name]

Address of Employer: [Insert street / number / city of town /

country]

Matter in dispute: [Indicate main issues in dispute]

Party who initiated the dispute: [Indicate "Employer" or

"Contractor"]

Status of dispute: [Indicate if it is being treated by the

Adjudicator, under Arbitration or being dealt with by the

Judiciary]
[insert [insert amount] [insert amount]
year]
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1.

Form FIN - 3.1:
Financial Situation and Performance

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture.]

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]
Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Financial data

Type of Financial information in
[indicate currency]

Historic information for previous [insert number,

in figure and in word] years

KES. equivalent)

(amount in currency, currency exchange rate

Year 1 Year 2

I Year 3

Statement of financial position (information from balance sheet)

Total assets (TA)

Total financial liabilities?

Total equity/Net worth (NW)

Current assets

Current liabilities

Working capital (WC)

Information from income statement

Total revenue

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, and
amortization (EBITDA)?

Earnings before taxes (EBT)

Cash flow information

Cash flow from operating activities

Means any financial indebtedness for and in respect of:

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

f)

any monies borrowed on a short, medium or long-term basis;
any bank overdraft;

any amounts raised pursuant to any bills of exchange issued to a third party (or any dematerialised equivalent of such

instrument);

any amounts raised pursuant to any note purchase facility or the issue of bonds, notes, debentures, loan stock or any

similar instruments;

the amount of any liability in respect of any lease or hire purchase contract which would be treated as a finance or capital

lease;

receivables sold or discounted (other than any receivables to the extent they are sold on a non-recourse basis).
Means, for any given year, the aggregate of:

(+) net income

(+) tax expense

(+/-) extraordinary income or expense

(+/-) financial result

(+/-) net foreign exchange losses or gains

(+) net depreciation and amortization allowances and provisions
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2.

Financial documents

The Bidder and in case of a JV, each member shall provide copies of financial statements for three (3)
years pursuant Section Il - Evaluation and Qualifications Criteria, criterion 3.1. The financial
statements shall:

a)

b)
<)
d)
Q

Reflect the financial situation of the Bidder or in case of a JV, each member, and not an affiliated
entity (such as parent company or group member);

Be independently audited or certified in accordance with local legislation;
Be complete, including all notes to the financial statements;
Correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited.

Attached are copies of financial statements?® for the three (3) years required above and
complying with the requirements

3

If the most recent set of financial statements is for a period earlier than 12 months from the date of bid, the reason for this
should be justified.
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Form FIN-3.2:
Annual Turnover

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Annual turnover data

Year
Amount and currency? Exchange rate KES. equivalent
[Indicate [insert amount and indicate currency] [insert exchange rates | [insert KES. equivalent]
calendar year] used to calculate the

KES. equivalent]

Average Annual
Turnover?

1
2

The indicated turnover amounts must be identical as those appearing on the financial statements.
See Section lll, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 3.2.
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Form FIN-3.3:
Financial Resources

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and all parties combined in case of a Joint Venture]

Specify proposed sources of financing, such as liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit,
and other financial means, net of current commitments, available to meet the total construction cash

flow demands of the subject contract or contracts as specified in Section Il - Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria.

Financial Resources

No. Source of financing Amount (KES or equivalent)
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Form FIN-3.4:
Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress

Bidders and each member to a JV should provide information on their current commitments on all
contracts that have been awarded, or for which a letter of intent or acceptance has been received, or
for contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to

be issued.

Current Contract Commitments

Value of Average Monthly
Employer's Contact Qutstanding Estimated Invoicing Over
No. Name of Contract Address, Telephone Work Completion Last Six Months
and Fax (Current KES. Date (Equivalent
Equivalent) KES./month)
1
2
3
4
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Form EXP-4.1:
General Construction Experience

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and in the case of a JV Bidder, each Member]

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

[Identify contracts that demonstrate continuous construction work over the past [number] years pursuant
to Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 4.1. List contracts chronologically, according
to their commencement (starting) dates.]

Starting Ending Year Contract Identification Role of Bidder
Yeart?
[Indicate [Indicate Contract name: [insert full name] [insert "Prime

year] year] Brief Description of the Works performed by the Bidder: Contractor””or WV
[describe works performed briefly] Member" or
"Subcontractor" or
Amount of contract: [insert amount in currency, mention "Management
currency used, exchange rate and KES. equivalent] Contractor"]

Name of Employer: [indicate full name]

Address: [indicate street/number/town or city/country]

1 See Section Ill, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, criterion 4.1.
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Form EXP-4.2(a):
Specific Construction and Contract Management Experience

[The following table shall be filled in for contracts performed by the Bidder or each member of a Joint
Venture]

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Similar Contract No: Information
[insert number] of [insert
number of similar contracts
required]

Contract Identification:

[Insert contract name and number, if applicable]

Award Date:

[Insert day, month, year, i.e., 15 June 2015]

Completion Date:

[Insert day, month, year, i.e., 03 October 2017]

Role in Contract: O O O O

[check the appropriate box] Prime Member in JV Management Subcontractor
Contractor Contractor

Total Contract Amount:

[Insert total contract amount in local currency] [Insert Exchange
rate and total
contract amount
in KES.
equivalent]

If member is a JV or %
subgqntrgcto_r, specify [Insert a percentage amount] [Insert total contract [Insert exchange
participation in total Contract .
amount in local rate and total
amount: currency] contract amount
in KES.
equivalent]

Employer's Name:

[Insert full name]

Address:

[Indicate street / number / town or city / country]

Telephone/Fax numbers:

[Insert telephone / fax numbers, including country and city area codes]

Email:

[Insert email address, if available]
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Form EXP-4.2(a) (cont.):

Specific Construction and Contract Management Experience (cont.)

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]
JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

Similar Contract No:

of similar contracts required]

[insert number] of [insert number

Information

Description of the similarity in accordance with criterion 4.2(a) of Section Il - Evaluation and

Qualification Criteria:

1. Amount

[insert amount in local currency, exchange rate, KES. in words and in
figures]

items

2. Physical size of required works

[Insert physical size of items]

3. Complexity

[Insert description of complexity]

4.  Methods/Technology

[Insert specific aspects of the methods/technology involved in the
Contract]

5. Construction rate for
activities

key

[Insert rates and items]

6. Other Characteristics

[Insert other characteristics, as described in Section VII - Works
Requirement — Scope of Works]
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Form EXP-4.2(b):
Construction Experience in Key Activities

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

Subcontractor's Name! (as per ITB 34.2 and 34.4): [insert full name]
IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

1. Key Activity No. 1: [insert brief description of the activity, emphasizing its specificity]

Information

Contract Identification:

[Insert contract name and number, if applicable]

Award Date:

[Insert day, month, year, i.e., 15 June 2015]

Completion Date:

[Insert day, month, year, i.e., 03 October 2017]

Role in Contract: O O O O
[Check the appropriate box] Prime Member in JV Management Subcontractor
Contractor Contractor

Total Contract Amount:

[insert total contract amount in contract currency(ies)] | [insert exchange rate
and total Contract
amount in KES.

equivalent]
Quantity (Volume, number or Total quantity in the Percentage Actual Quantity
rate of production, as applicable) Contract participation Performed
performed under the contract per 0] (i) (i) x (i)

year or part of the year:

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Employer's Name:

[Insert full name]

Address:

[Indicate street / number / town or city / country]

Telephone/Fax numbers:

[Insert telephone/fax numbers, including country and city area codes]

Email:

[Insert email address, if available]

1 |f permitted by the Employer under "specialized works" (criterion 4.2(b) in the table of the Qualification Criteria of Section Il
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
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Form EXP-4.2(b) (cont.):
Construction Experience in Key Activities (cont.)

Bidder's Name: [insert full name]
Joint Venture Member's Name: [insert full name]

Description of the key activities in accordance with criterion 4.2(b) of Section Il - Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria:

[insert response to inquiry indicated in left column]

2. Key Activity No. 2: [insert brief description of the activity, emphasizing its specificity]

3. Key Activity No. 2: [insert brief description of the activity, emphasizing its specificity]
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Form CER:
Quality Management / Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS)
Certification

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Certification [Quality / Environmental / Health and Security]
[Delete as appropriate]

DESCRIPTION INFORMATIONS

Identification of the certificate:

[Insert full name of the certificate]

Date of Issue:

[Insert day, month, year of first certificate award]

Areas covered by the certificate:

[Insert activities and locations]

Expiry Date:
[Insert day, month, year]

Issuer's Name:

[Insert full name]

Address:

[Insert street / number / town or city / country]

Telephone/Fax numbers:

[Insert phone/fax numbers, including country and city
area codes]

Email:
[Insert email address, if available]
Compliance with international standards: The certificate is [ISO 9001, ISO 14001, ISO 45001]
[select as appropriate]
O Yes/O No

If no, proof of conformity with ISO standards by the | The Bidder shall provide a conformity assessment of its
Bidder: certificate by an internationally recognized Accredited
Certification Body.

The Bidder shall fill this Form for each Certification required under criterion 5.1 of Section lll,
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
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Form EXP-ESHS:
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Experience

Bidder’'s Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

JV Member’s Name: [insert full name]

IPC No. and title: [insert IPC number and title]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Similar Contract No:
[insert number] of [insert number of
similar contracts required]

Information

Contract Identification:

[Insert contract name and number, if applicable]

Short Project Description (main scope and
key values of project):

[Insert short project description]

Award Date:

[Insert day, month, year]

Completion Date:

[Insert day, month, year]

Role in contract: o o o o
[Check the appropriate box] Prime Member inJV  Management  Subcontractor
Contractor Contractor

Total Contract Amount:
[Insert total contract amount in local [Insert total contract
currency] amount in KES.

equivalent]

If party in a JV or subcontractor, specify %

participation of Total Contract Amount: [Insert a [Insert total [Insert total contract
percentage contract amount in | amount in KES.
amount] local currency] equivalent]

Employer's Name:

[Insert full name]

Address:

[Insert street / number / town or city / country]

Telephone/Fax numbers:

[Insert telephone / fax numbers, including country and city area
codes]

Email:

[Insert email address, if available]
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Similar Contract No:

[insert number] of [insert number of

similar contracts required]

Information

a)

b)

c)

d)

Description of the ESHS challenges and
measures implemented under the contract:

ESHS Challenge

ESHS Risk Assessment Level

ESHS implemented measures
(as per criterion 5.3 of
Section Il - Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria)

ESHS Knowhow Transfer or
ESHS Local Staff Capacity
Building (as per criterion 5.4, if
any, of Section Il - Evaluation
and Qualification Criteria)

[Insert description]

[Insert classification of risk assessment as per development bank
classification if applicable]

[Provide a document supporting the implementation of ESHS
measures, acceptable to the Employer?]

[Provide evidence of successful?:

- ESHS knowhow transfer to local partners or subcontractors;
or
—  ESHS capacity building to local staff under the contract.]

1 For example, ESHS activity reports, ESHS final reports, ESHS inspection reports, supervision Engineer's reports, etc. Only
documents evidencing implementation of ESHS measures shall be accepted.

2 For example, ESHS activity reports presenting training activities, training materials with attendance sheets, etc. Only
documents evidencing ESHS knowhow transfer or ESHS local staff capacity building shall be accepted.
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Form or Bid Security

Demand Guarantee

Beneficiary:

Invitation of Bids No.:

Date:

Bid Guarantee No.:

Guarantor:
We have been informed that (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has
submitted or will submit to the Beneficiary its bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of

under Invitation for Bids No. ("the IFB").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary’s conditions, Bids must be supported by
a Bid guarantee.

At the request of the Bidder, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any
sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of ( ) upon receipt by us of
the Beneficiary’s first demand, supported by the Beneficiary’s statement, whether in the demand itself
or a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that either the Bidder:

a) Has withdrawn its Bid during the period of Bid validity set forth in the Bidder’s Letter of Bid ("the
Bid Validity Period™"), or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or

b) Having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary during the Bid Validity Period
or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder, (i) has failed to execute the contract agreement,
or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders
("ITB") of the Beneficiary’s Bidding Documents.

This guarantee will expire:

a) if the Bidder is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract agreement signed
by the Bidder and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such contract
agreement; or

b) if the Bidder is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the
Beneficiary’s notification to the Bidder of the results of the bidding process; or (ii) twenty-eight
days after the end of the Bid Validity Period.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office
indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC
Publication No. 758.

[Signature(s)]
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Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

Date:

Bid No.:

Alternative No.:

To:

We understand that, according to your conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing
Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with
the entity that invited Bids for the period of time of starting on , if we are in
breach of our obligation(s) under the Bid conditions, because we:

a) Have withdrawn our Bid during the period of Bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid or any
extension thereto accepted by us; or

b) Having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Employer during the period of Bid validity
or any extension thereto accepted by us, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract, if required, or
(i) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid-Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the
earlier of:

a) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or

b) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Name of the Bidder?:

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder?:

Title of the person signing the Bid:

Signature of the person named above:

Date signed: day of:

Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members of
the Joint Venture that submits the Bid.]

In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder.

2 person signhing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder attached to the Bid.
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Section V - Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility in AFD-Financed Procurement

Financing allocated by AFD to a Contracting Authority has been entirely untied since 15t January
2002. To the exception of any equipment or any sector which is subject to an embargo by the
United Nations, the European Union or France, all goods, works, plants, consulting services and
non-consulting services are eligible for AFD financing regardless of the country of origin of the
supplier, contractor, subcontractor, consultant or subconsultant inputs or resources used in the
implementation processes. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the
Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or
non-consulting services.

Natural or legal Persons! (including all members of a joint venture or any of their suppliers,
contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants) shall not be awarded an
AFD-financed contract if, on the date of submission of an application, a bid or a proposal, or on
the date of award of a contract, they:

2.1 Are bankrupt or being wound up or ceasing their activities, are having their activities
administered by the courts, have entered into receivership, or are in any analogous
situation arising from a similar procedure;

2.2 Have been:

a) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res
judicata in the country where the contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of
any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a
contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of
Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission
Form) which shows that this conviction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;

b) subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European
Union or by the competent authorities of the country where they are constituted, for
fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process
or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together
with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid
or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this sanction is not relevant in the
context of the Contract;

c) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res
judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the
procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;

2.3 Are listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France
for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and
security;

2.4  Have been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against
them for significant or persistent failure to comply with their contractual obligations during
contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still
pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against them;

2.5 Have not fulfilled their fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with
the legal provisions of either the country where they are constituted or the Contracting
Authority's country;

2.6 Are subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and are listed on the website
http://www.worldbank.org/debarr, unless they provide supporting information together with

1

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association,
or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).


http://www.worldbank.org/debarr
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their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal
Submission Form) which shows that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of the
Contract;

2.7 Have created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation
requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of the Contract.

3. State-owned entities may compete only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially
autonomous, and (ii) operate under commercial law. To be eligible, a state-owned entity shall
establish to AFD’s satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other
information AFD may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from their state (ii) does not
currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial
enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to their state, can acquire rights
and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared
bankrupt.
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Section VI — AFD Policy — Corrupt and Fraudulent
Practices - Environmental and Social Responsibility

1. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants
must observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and performance of the
contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may
be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

By signing the Statement of Integrity, the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or
subconsultants declare that (i) “it did not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award
process to the Contracting Authority’s detriment, and that it did not and will not get involved in any anti-
competitive practice”, and that (ii) “the procurement process and the performance of the contract did not
and shall not give rise to any act of corruption or fraud”.

Moreover, AFD requires including in the Procurement Documents and AFD-financed contracts a
provision requiring that suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants will permit
AFD to inspect their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the
AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

AFD reserves the right to take any action it deems appropriate to check that these ethics rules are
observed and reserves, in particular, the rights to:

a) Reject a proposal for a contract award if it is established that during the selection process the
bidder or consultant that is recommended for the award has been convicted of corruption, directly
or by means of an agent, or has engaged in fraud or anti-competitive practices in view of being
awarded the Contract;

b) Declare mis procurement when it is established that, at any time, the Contracting Authority, the
suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants their representatives have
engaged in acts of corruption, fraud or anti-competitive practices during the procurement process
or performance of the contract without the Contracting Authority having taken appropriate action
in due time satisfactory to AFD to remedy the situation, including by failing to inform AFD at the
time they knew of such practices.

AFD defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
a) Corruption of a Public Officer means:

- The act of promising, offering or giving to a Public Officer, directly or indirectly, an undue
advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person? or entity, for such Public Officer to
act or refrain from acting in his official capacity; or

- The act by which a Public Officer solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue
advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to
act or refrain from acting in his official capacity.

b) A Public Officer shall be construed as meaning:

- Any person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate (within
the country of the Contracting Authority) regardless of whether that natural Person was
nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of
the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the natural Person occupies;

- Any other natural Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or
a State-owned company, or who provides a public service;

1 Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association,

or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).



Section VI — AFD Policy — Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices —Environmental and Social Responsibility

89

d)

e)

2.

- Any other natural Person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the country of
the Contracting Authority.

Corruption of a Private Person? means:

- The act of promising, offering or giving to any Private Person, directly or indirectly, an undue
advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person
to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or
professional obligations; or;

- The act by which any Private Person solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue
advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person
to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or
professional obligations.

Fraud means any dishonest conduct (act or omission), whether or not it constitutes a criminal
offence, deliberately intended to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate
consent, to circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate internal rules in order to
obtain illegitimate profit.

Anti-competitive practices mean:

- Any concerted or implied practices which have as their object or effect the prevention,
restriction or distortion of competition within a marketplace, especially where they (i) limit
access to the marketplace or free exercise of competition by other undertakings, (ii) prevent
free, competition-driven price determination by artificially causing price increases or
decreases, (iii) restrict or control production, markets, investments or technical progress;
or (iv) divide up market shares or sources of supply;

- Any abuse by one undertaking or a group of undertakings which hold a dominant position
on an internal market or on a substantial part of it;

- Any practice whereby prices are quoted or set unreasonably low, the object of which is to
eliminate an undertaking or any of its products from a market or to prevent it from entering
the market.

Environmental and Social Responsibility

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognised
environmental and social standards are complied with. Suppliers, contractors, subcontractors,
consultants or subconsultants for AFD-financed contracts shall consequently undertake in the
Statement of Integrity to:

a)

b)

Comply with and ensure that all their subcontractors or subconsultants comply with international
environmental and labour standards, consistent with applicable law and regulations in the country
of implementation of the contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International
Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties;

Implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the
environmental and social management plan (ESMP) provided by the Contracting Authority.

2

Means any natural Person other than a Public Officer.
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2.

Section VIl —= Works Requirements

Contents

SPECIFICATIONS

The Specifications to be used for the Works are the General and Technical Specifications
given in Volume Il of the Bidding Documents.

Standards, brand names, catalogue numbers or similar classifications provided in the
Specifications are indicative of performance requirements and offers which have similar
characteristics and which provide performance and quality equal or higher to the performance
requirements specified would be accepted.

The Terms “The Engineer” (or “The Resident Engineer’) and “Engineer’'s Representative”
have the same meaning as “The Project Manager’ and “The Project Manager's
Representative” respectively.

THE DETAILED SPECIFICATIONS ARE GIVEN IN VOLUME II OF THE BIDDING
DOCUMENTS

DRAWINGS

Id DRAWING No. DESCRIPTION
1 6000002-W&S-C-G-000 LIST OF DRAWINGS - SHEET 1 OF 2
2 6000002-W&S-C-G-000A LIST OF DRAWINGS - SHEET 2 OF 2
SOUTH MAINLAND
LAYOUTS
3 6000002-W&S-C-G-001 LOCATION PLAN
4 6000002-W&S-C-G-002 SUB-LOCATION BOUNDARIES
5 6000002-W&S-C-G-003 WATER PIPELINES GENERAL LAYOUT
6 6000002-W&S-C-G-004 BULK WATER METERS - GENERAL LAYOUT
WATER LINES
7 6000002-W&S-SM-P-002 LINE SB-01 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
8 6000002-W&S-SM-P-003 LINE SB-01 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
9 6000002-W&S-SM-P-004 LINE SB-01 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 3 OF 3)
10 6000002-W&S-SM-P-005 LINE SB-04 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
11 6000002-W&S-SM-P-006 LINE SB-04 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
12 6000002-W&S-SM-P-007 LINE SB-06 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
13 6000002-W&S-SM-P-007A LINE SB-07 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
14 6000002-W&S-SM-P-007B LINE SB-07 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 2)
15 6000002-W&S-SM-P-008 LINE SB-10 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
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Id DRAWING No. DESCRIPTION

16 6000002-W&S-SM-P-009 LINE SB-10 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
17 6000002-W&S-SM-P-010 LINE SB-10 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
18 6000002-W&S-SM-P-011 LINE SB-12 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
19 6000002-W&S-SM-P-012 LINE SB-12 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
20 6000002-W&S-SM-P-013 LINE SB-12 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
21 6000002-W&S-SM-P-014 LINE SB-13 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 4)
22 6000002-W&S-SM-P-015 LINE SB-13 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 4)
23 6000002-W&S-SM-P-016 LINE SB-13 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 4)
24 6000002-W&S-SM-P-017 LINE SB-13 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 4 OF 4)
25 6000002-W&S-SM-P-018 LINE SB-15 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
26 6000002-W&S-SM-P-019 LINE SB-15 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
27 6000002-W&S-SM-P-020 LINE SB-16 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
28 6000002-W&S-SM-P-021 LINE SB-16 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
29 6000002-W&S-SM-P-022 LINE SB-16 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
30 6000002-W&S-SM-P-023 LINE SB-18 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
31 6000002-W&S-SM-P-024 LINE SB-18 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
32 6000002-W&S-SM-P-025 LINE SB-19 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
33 6000002-W&S-SM-P-026 LINE SB-19 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
34 6000002-W&S-SM-P-027 LINE SB-20 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
35 6000002-W&S-SM-P-028 LINE SB-20 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
36 6000002-W&S-SM-P-029 LINE SB-23 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
37 6000002-W&S-SM-P-030 LINE SB-23 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
38 6000002-W&S-SM-P-031 LINE SB-24 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
39 6000002-W&S-SM-P-033 LINE SB-24 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 2)
40 6000002-W&S-SM-P-034 LINE SB-26 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
41 6000002-W&S-SM-P-035 LINE SB-26 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
42 6000002-W&S-SM-P-036 LINE SB-27 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
43 6000002-W&S-SM-P-037 LINE SB-27 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
44 6000002-W&S-SM-P-038 LINE SB-28 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
45 6000002-W&S-SM-P-039 LINE SB-28 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
46 6000002-W&S-SM-P-040 LINE SB-29 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
47 6000002-W&S-SM-P-041 LINE SB-29 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
48 6000002-W&S-SM-P-042 LINE SB-30 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
49 6000002-W&S-SM-P-043 LINE SB-30 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
50 6000002-W&S-SM-P-044 LINE SB-31 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)

51 6000002-W&S-SM-P-045 LINE SB-31 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
52 6000002-W&S-SM-P-046 LINE SB-32 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
53 6000002-W&S-SM-P-047 LINE SB-32 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
54 6000002-W&S-SM-P-048 LINE SB-33 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
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55 | 6000002-W&S-SM-P-049 LINE SB-33 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
56 | 6000002-W&S-SM-P-050 LINE SB-35 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)

57 | 6000002-W&S-SM-P-051 LINE SB-35 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
BULK WATER METERS
58 | 6000002-W&S-C-G-004A DISTRICT METERED AREAS
59 | 6000002-W&S-C-G-004B BULK WATER METERS WITH DIAMETERS
o | 5000002-was-c-6-004C ElLTET?JggMAGNEﬂc METERS CHAMBER - PLAN & PIPE
ABLUTION BLOCKS
61 | 6000002-W&S-SM-G-060 SITE LAYOUT PLAN
62 | 6000002-W&S-SM-D-061 ELEVATIONS
63 | 6000002-W&S-SM-D-062 SECTIONS
WEST MAINLAND
LAYOUTS
64 | 6000002-W&S-C-G-003 WATER PIPELINES GENERAL LAYOUT
65 | 6000002-W&S-C-G-004 BULK WATER METERS - GENERAL LAYOUT
LOT 4A WATER LINES
66 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-004 LINE WM-03  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
67 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-005 LINE WM-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
68 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-006 LINE WM-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
69 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-007 LINE WM-05  PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
70 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-008 LINE WM-07 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
71 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-009 LINE WM-07 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
72 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-010 LINE WM-08 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
73 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-011 LINE WM-11  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
74 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-012 LINE WM-12  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 5)
75 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-013 LINE WM-12  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 5)
76 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-014 LINE WM-12  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 3 OF 5)
77 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-015 LINE WM-12  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 4 OF 5)
78 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-016 LINE WM-12  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 5 OF 5)
79 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-017 LINE WM-13  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 5)
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80 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-018 LINE WM-13  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 5)
g1 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-019 LINE WM-13  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 3 OF 5)
g2 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-020 LINE WM-13  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 4 OF 5)
g3 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-021 LINE WM-13  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 5 OF 5)
84 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-022 LINE WM-14  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 4)
85 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-023 LINE WM-14  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 4)
g6 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-024 LINE WM-14  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 3 OF 4)
g7 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-025 LINE WM-14  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 4 OF 4)
g8 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-026 LINE WM-17  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
g9 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-027 LINE WM-18  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
90 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-028 LINE WM-19  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
91 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-029 LINE WM-19  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
92 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-030 LINE WM-19  PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
93 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-031 LINE WM-20 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
94 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-032 LINE WM-21 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
LOT 4B WATER LINES
95 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-033 LINE WN-01 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
96 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-034 LINE WN-01 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
97 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-035 LINE WN-01 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
98 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-036 LINE WN-02 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
99 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-037 LINE WN-02 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
100 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-038 LINE WN-03 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
101 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-039 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 10)
102 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-040 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 10)
103 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-041 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 3 OF 10)
104 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-042 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 4 OF 10)
105 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-043 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 5 OF 10)
106 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-044 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 6 OF 10)
107 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-045 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 7 OF 10)
108 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-046 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 8 OF 10)
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109 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-047 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 9 OF 10)
110 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-048 LINE WN-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 10 OF 10)
111 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-049 LINE WN-08 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
112 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-050 LINE WN-08 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
143 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-051 LINE WN-08 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 3 OF 3)
114 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-052 LINE WN-09 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
115 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-053 LINE WN-10 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
116 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-054 LINE WN-10 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
117 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-055 LINE WN-11  PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
118 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-057 LINE WP-01 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
119 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-058 LINE WP-01 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 2 OF 2)
120 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-059 LINE WP-02 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
121 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-060 LINE WP-02 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
122 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-061 LINE WP-02  PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
123 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-062 LINE WP-03 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
124 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-063 LINE WP-03 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
125 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-064 LINE WP-03  PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
126 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-065 LINE WP-04 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
127 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-066 LINE WP-04 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
128 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-067 LINE WP-04 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
129 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-068 LINE WP-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 3)
130 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-069 LINE WP-05 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 3)
131 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-070 LINE WP-05 PIPE FITTING DETAILS (SHEET 3 OF 3)
132 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-071 LINE WP-08 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 1)
133 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-072 LINE WP-09 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
134 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-073 LINE WP-09 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 2)
135 | 6000002-W8&S-WM-P-074 LINE WP-10 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
136 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-075 LINE WP-10 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 2)
137 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-076 LINE WP-14 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
4138 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-077 LINE WP-14 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 2)
4139 | 6000002-W&S-WM-P-078 LINE WP-15 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 1 OF 2)
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DESCRIPTION

140

6000002-W&S-WM-P-079

LINE WP-15 PLAN AND PROFILE (SHEET 2 OF 2)

141

6000002-W&S-WM-P-080

Additional Pipelines

142

6000002-W&S-WM-P-081

PIPE FITTINGS FOR ADDITIONAL LINES

WEST MAINLAND BULK
WATER METERS

143

6000002-W&S-C-G-004A

DISTRICT METERED AREAS

144

6000002-W&S-C-G-004B

BULK WATER METERS WITH DIAMETERS

145

6000002-W&S-C-G-004C

ELECTROMAGNETIC METERS CHAMBER - PLAN &
PIPE FITTINGS

STANDARD DRAWINGS

146

6000002-W&S-C-S-001

Chamber cover- Plan and Sections Sheet 1 Of 2

147

6000002-W&S-C-S-002

Chamber cover- Plan and Sections Sheet 2 Of 2

148

6000002-W&S-C-S-003

Consumer Water Supply Connection Details

149

6000002-W&S-C-S-004

Air valve Chambers & Fittings Details

150

6000002-W&S-C-S-005

Washout Chamber and Pipe Fitting Details

151

6000002-W&S-C-S-006

Fire Hydrant Details

152

6000002-W&S-C-S-007

Typical Road Section Details

153

6000002-W&S-C-S-008

Thrust and Anchor blocks Details

154

6000002-W&S-C-S-009

Typical Crossings Details

155

6000002-W&S-C-S-010

Fence & Gate Details

156

6000002-W&S-C-S-011

Marker Posts Details

157

6000002-W&S-C-S-012

Project Signboard Details

THE ENGINEERING DRAWINGS ARE GIVEN IN VOLUME Ill OF THE BIDDING DOCUMENT
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Specifications for Environmental, Social, Health and Safety
Management (ESHS) of the Works

1. Essential ESHS issues of worksite management

The ESHS topics identified during the Environmental and Social Impact Assessment study of the
project, which present a major risk for the worksites management are:

a) ESHS resources and facilities and ESHS monitoring YES
organization
b) Project Areas management (base camps, quarries, borrow YES
pits, storage areas)
c) Health & Safety on worksites YES
d) Local recruitment and ESHS trainings of local staff (capacity YES
building), ESHS trainings of subcontractors and local partners
(transfer of knowledge)
e) Relations with stakeholders, information and consultation of YES
local communities and authorities
f)  Traffic management YES
g) Hazardous products YES
h) Wastewater (effluents) YES
i)  Protection of water resources YES
J)  Atmospheric emissions, noise and vibrations YES
k) Waste management YES
I)  Biodiversity: protection of fauna and flora YES
m) Site rehabilitation and revegetation YES
n) Erosion and sedimentation YES
0) Control of infectious and communicable diseases (HIV/AIDS, YES
malaria, etc.)
2. ESHS requirements not applicable under this Contract
The ESHS norms, standards and discharge limit values recommended by the
specialised international organisations affiliated to the United Nations shall apply to
the Contract:
"No". Only the country's regulations are applicable.

Throughout the present ESHS Specifications (hereinafter called "the ESHS Specifications"”), a
reference to Conditions of Contract, abbreviated by CC, means a reference to both the General
Conditions of Contract and the Particular Conditions of Contract. Readers should apply due care, when
being referred to a specific Clause or Sub-Clause, to:

- Read first the Clause or Sub-Clause text from the General Conditions of Contract;

- Then check whether this text has been amended by the Particular Conditions of Contract, and if
S0, to which extent.

As per CC Sub-Clause 1.5 — Priority of Documents, when interpreting the Contract, the terms of the
Particular Conditions of Contract prevail over those found in the General Conditions of Contract.
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Any term in these ESHS Specifications which is identical to a term in the Conditions of Contract shall
have the same meaning as the one defined in the Conditions of Contract.

Any term in capital letters in these ESHS Specifications is defined in CC Sub-Clause 1.1 — Definitions.
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A. Environmental, Social, Health and Safety Management System

Responsibilities
and Liabilities

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

In conjunction with his obligations defined under the Contract, the
Contractor will plan, execute and document construction works
pursuant to the Environment, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS)
Specifications.

The Contractor is liable for all damages to natural resources
caused by the execution of the Works or the methods used for
execution, unless it is established that the execution or methods
were necessary, according to the provisions of the Contract or an
Engineer’s instruction.

Under the Contract and as introduced by the ESHS Specifications,
the term "Project Area" means:

a) The land where work will be carried out; or

b) The land necessary for the implantation of construction
facilities (work camp, workshops, offices, storage areas,
concrete production plants) and including special access
roads; or

c) Quarries for aggregates, rock material and riprap; or
d) Borrow areas for sand and other selected material; or

e) Stockpiling areas for backfill material or other demolition
rubble; or

f)  Any other location, specifically designated in the Contract as
a Project Area.

The term "Project Area” encompasses any individual Project Area
or all Project Areas.

For the sake of clarity, Project Area is a different concept than Site
under CC Sub-Clause 1.1.6.7.

Project Area defines an area within which the Contractor is to
comply with environmental, social, health and safety obligations
defined in the ESHS Specifications.

Site is the places where the Permanent Works are to be executed
and to which Plant and Materials are to be delivered, and where
right of access to, and possessi